
           

REGULAR MEETING & WORK SESSION
OF THE CITY COUNCIL

December 12, 2017

ADDISON TOWN HALL

5300 BELT LINE RD., DALLAS, TX 75254
5:00 PM DINNER & EXECUTIVE SESSION & WORK SESSION

7:30 PM REGULAR MEETING
             

1.    Closed (executive) session of the Addison City Council pursuant to:

Section 551.071, Tex. Gov. Code, to conduct a private consultation with its
attorney on a matter in which the duty of the attorney to the governmental
body under the Texas Disciplinary Rules of Professional Conduct of the State
Bar of Texas clearly conflicts with Chapter 551, Tex. Gov. Code, pertaining to: 

Town of Addison v. Landmark Structures, L.P., Urban Green Energy,
Freese and Nichols, Inc. v. SWG Energy, Inc. - Cause No.
DC-15-07691 44th Judicial Court, Dallas County
4800 Airport Parkway

Section 551.074, Tex. Gov. Code, to deliberate the appointment, employment,
evaluation, reassignment, duties, discipline or dismissal of a public officer or
employee, pertaining to: 

City Manager Evaluation
 

2.    RECONVENE INTO REGULAR SESSION: In accordance with Texas
Government Code, Chapter 551, the City Council will reconvene into Regular
Session to consider action, if any, on matters discussed in Executive Session.

 



WORK SESSION
 

3.    Present and Discuss Next Steps for the Addison Circle Park
Interactive Display Fountain.

 

4.    Present and Discuss Fundamentals of Municipal Debt.
 

5.    Present and Discuss the Use of Artificial Turf Within Required
Landscape Areas, per the Town's Ordinance.

 

REGULAR MEETING
 

Pledge of Allegiance
 

Announcements and Acknowledgements regarding Town and
Council Events and Activities

Discussion of Events/Meetings
 

6.    Public Comment.
The City Council invites citizens to address the City Council on any
topic not on this agenda. Please fill out a City Council Appearance
Card and submit it to a city staff member prior to Public
Participation. Speakers are allowed up to three (3) minutes per
speaker with fifteen (15) total minutes on items of interest or
concern and not on items that are on the current agenda. In
accordance with the Texas Open Meetings Act, the City Council
cannot take action on items not listed on the agenda. The Council
may choose to place the item on a future agenda.

 

Consent Agenda:
All items listed under the Consent Agenda are considered routine by the City Council and will be
enacted by one motion with no individual consideration. If individual consideration of an item is
requested, it will be pulled from the Consent Agenda and discussed separately.

 

7.    Consider Action to Approve the November 14, 2017 and the
November 28, 2017 Regular City Council Meeting Minutes.

 



 

8.    Consider Action to Approve a Resolution with Felix
Construction Company, Inc., for the Rehabilitation of the 2.0
Million Gallon Surveyor Ground Storage Tank and Pipeline
Improvements Project and Authorize the City Manager to
Execute the Agreement in an Amount not to Exceed $2,511,711.

 

9.    Consider Action to Approve a Resolution Endorsing the Design
of the Aerial Rail Crossing of Midway Road as Part of the
Cotton Belt Regional Rail Project.

 

Regular Items
 

10.    Hold a Public Hearing, Discuss, and Consider Action on an
Ordinance to Approve the Development Plan for
the Development of the Elan Addison Grove Project Including
a Site Plan, Landscape Plan, Utility and Drainage Plan,
Building Elevations and Floor Plans for 321 Multifamily Units,
Including Amenities, as well as Ground Floor Retail Space, in
an Existing Planned Development District (PD O16-003)
Located on Approximately 4.194 Acres, Addressed at 4150
Belt Line Road.  Case 1767-Z/Elan Addison Grove.

 

11.    Hold a Public Hearing, Discuss, and Consider Action on
an Ordinance to Approve Changing the Zoning on Property
Located at 15003 Inwood Road, Which the Property is
Currently Zoned C-1, To a PD, Planned Development District,
Allowing all C-1 Uses, plus Manufacturing and Assembly
Uses, and Establishing Modified Development Standards.
PUBLIC HEARING Case 1766-Z/Fish Gallery

 

12.    Present, Discuss, and Consider Action on an Ordinance
Granting a Meritorious Exception for 7-Eleven, Located at
3710 Belt Line Road, from the Code of Ordinances, Chapter 62
Section 62-140. - Gasoline Signs in Order to Permit a Total
Number of Signs Exceeding the Allowed Maximum.

 

13.    Present, Discuss, and Consider Action on a Resolution to



13.    Present, Discuss, and Consider Action on a Resolution to
Appoint Members to the Addison Circle/Cotton
Belt Special Area Study Advisory Committee.

 

14.    Present, Discuss, and Consider Action on a Resolution to
Approve a Professional Services Agreement with Pacheco
Koch Consulting Engineers, Inc. for the Belt Line Road
Enhancements Master Plan (Belt Line Phase 1.5) and
Authorize the City Manager to Execute the Agreement in an
Amount not to Exceed $85,689.60.

 

15.    Present, Discuss, and Consider Action on a Resolution to
Approve a Professional Services Agreement with Moore
Iacofano Goltsman, Inc. for the Parks, Recreation and Open
Space Master Plan and Authorize the City Manager to Execute
the Agreement in an Amount not to Exceed $125,000.

 

Adjourn Meeting
 

NOTE: The City Council reserves the right to meet in Executive Session closed
to the public at any time in the course of this meeting to discuss matters listed on
the agenda, as authorized by the Texas Open Meetings Act, Texas Government
Code, Chapter 551, including §551.071 (private consultation with the attorney for
the City); §551.072 (purchase, exchange, lease or value of real property);
§551.074 (personnel or to hear complaints against personnel); §551.076
(deployment, or specific occasions for implementation of security personnel or
devices); and §551.087 (economic development negotiations). Any decision held
on such matters will be taken or conducted in Open Session following the
conclusion of the Executive Session.
 

 

Posted:
Christie Wilson, December 7, 2017, by 6:00 p.m.
  
THE TOWN OF ADDISON IS ACCESSIBLE TO PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES.

PLEASE CALL (972) 450-7090 AT LEAST
48 HOURS IN ADVANCE IF YOU NEED ASSISTANCE.



   
AI-2501     3.             
Work Session and Regular Meeting
Meeting Date: 12/12/2017  
Department: Parks & Recreation

AGENDA CAPTION:
Present and Discuss Next Steps for the Addison Circle Park Interactive Display
Fountain.

BACKGROUND:
In December 2015, Parks staff noticed the automated fill valve for the interactive display
fountains located in Addison Circle Park was constantly running, but the water level in
the receiving basin remained extremely low.  Staff began to identify potential problems
associated with the loss of water and brought in a fountain maintenance contractor and
the original fountain installer to help troubleshoot the issues. It was determined that the
interactive display fountains had multiple issues that contributed to the large loss of water:
  

Two of the three receiving basins do not hold water1.
Missing grout in the plaza contributes to water loss2.
Multiple breaks in the underground piping (three cracks and one section
where the pipe has pulled apart)

3.

Staff will discuss the condition of the interactive display fountain and seek direction from
Council on a range of options related to the Addison Circle Park fountain plaza.

RECOMMENDATION:
Staff requests direction from Council.

Attachments
Presentation - Addison Circle Park Display Fountain



12/7/2017

1

Addison Circle Park 
Interactive Display Fountain

December 12, 2017

1

History

2

In December of 2015, Parks staff noticed the automated fill valve for the interactive 
display fountains was constantly running but the water level in the receiving basin 
remained extremely low. 

In response:
 Staff began to troubleshoot and identify potential problems associated with the loss 

of water.  
 Staff brought in the fountain maintenance contractor and the original fountain 

installer to help troubleshoot the issues. 



12/7/2017

2

What are the issues?
2 of the 3 receiving basins do not hold water because of separated joints and cracks.

3

Picture of basin 1 Picture of basin 2

Missing grout in the plaza contributes to water loss.

What are the issues?

4

Picture of basin 1



12/7/2017

3

What are the issues?

5

There are multiple breaks in the underground piping.

Fountain Layout 
(Markedup).pdf

Additional issues to be addressed.
Limestone bands are cracked and spalling which cause ADA and safety concerns.

6

Picture of basin 1 Picture of basin 2



12/7/2017

4

Additional issues to be addressed.
Limestone blocks are cracked and spalling, causing aesthetic concerns.

7

Picture of basin 1 Picture of basin 2

Additional issues to be addressed.
Lights have settled and some are unfunctional causing ADA and safety concerns.

8

Picture of basin 1 Picture of basin 2



12/7/2017

5

POSSIBLE SOLUTIONS

9

OPTION 1
REMOVE THE FOUNTAIN.

 Replace fountain basin with steps.

 Improve function of plaza during 
events.

 Remove fountain heads and lights and 
re‐pave plaza.

 Relocate limestone blocks to not 
interfere with pedestrian paths.

OPTION 2
REPAIR AND MODERNIZE THE 

FOUNTAIN TO SIMILAR CONDITIONS.

 Repair damaged fountain lines.

 Install fountain sprays with integrated color 
RGB LED lights.

 Relocate limestone block to not interfere 
with pedestrian paths.

 Re‐pave plaza in the fountain area with 
colored acid etched concrete to match 
paver color.

 Zone sprays so that a portion of the 
fountain can be deactivated during events.

OPTION 3
CROWD CONTROLLED FOUNTAIN

 Replace fountain with an interactive Water 
Gush technology fountain that has 
smartphone crowd control features.

 Install fountain sprays with integrated color 
changing LED lights that have smartphone 
crowd control features.

 Re‐pave plaza in the fountain area with 
colored acid etched concrete to match 
paver color.

 Relocate sprays so fountain will not conflict 
with events.

OPTION 1 – REMOVAL OF THE FOUNTAIN

10



12/7/2017

6

OPTION 2 – REPAIR AND MODERNIZE FOUNTAIN

11

MODERNIZED FOUNTAINS AND LED LIGHTS

12



12/7/2017

7

13

OPTION 3 – CROWD CONTROLLED FOUNTAIN

CROWD CONTROLLED TECHNOLOGY

14www.youtube.com/watch?v=0OLUKpraYYc



12/7/2017

8

Next steps.

Council direction to staff on preferred option.

Define a project budget and costs.

Hire consultant to prepare construction drawings.

Bid the project and hire a general contractor.

Complete construction of the project.

15

Addison Circle Park 
Interactive Display Fountain

December 12, 2017

16



   
AI-2504     4.             
Work Session and Regular Meeting
Meeting Date: 12/12/2017  
Department: City Manager
Pillars: Gold Standard for Financial Health

AGENDA CAPTION:
Present and Discuss Fundamentals of Municipal Debt.

BACKGROUND:
This "Debt 101" presentation is designed to assist the citizens, businesses owners, and
the general public in understanding the use of municipal debt.  Cities use debt to finance
public infrastructure projects such as city facilities, parks, streets, water, sewer and
drainage improvements.  Debt financing allows cities to finance projects, capital assets,
or improvements to existing assets over their useful life. 

The presentation will address the following concepts: 

How municipal debt is different from personal and corporate debt
Use of municipal debt
Alternatives to issuing debt and the impact
Importance of bond ratings
Review of Town of Addison's existing debt
Addison's 10-year debt capacity analysis
Process and legal requirements for issuing municipal debt

This presentation, which will be made by the Town's Financial Advisors Nick Bulaich and
David Medanich from First Southwest, is intended to be the first of several discussions
regarding municipal debt. 

Attached to this presentation is a companion document called Debt 101- Frequently
Asked Questions (FAQ) which can be used to provide additional explanations regarding
municipal debt. This information will also be available on the Town of Addison website.

RECOMMENDATION:
Information only, no action required.

Attachments
Presentation - Debt 101
Frequently Asked Questions - Debt 101



1

Contacts

__________, 2017 Town of Addison, Texas

David K. Medanich

Vice Chairman

777 Main Street

Suite 1200

Fort Worth, Texas 76102

817.332.9710

david.medanich@hilltopsecurities.com

Debt 101 and Capacity Analysis

Nick Bulaich

Managing Director

777 Main Street

Suite 1200

Fort Worth, Texas 76102

817.332.9710

nick.bulaich@hilltopsecurities.com

T
O

W
N

O
F

A
D

D
I

S
O

N
,

 
T

E
X

A
S

Member FINRA / SIPC / NYSE
© 2017 Hilltop Securities Inc.
All Rights Reserved

Topics of Discussion

1

Debt 101 and Overview

Bond Ratings

Existing Debt and Capacity Analysis

Process for Issuing Debt

Next Steps



2

T
O

W
N

O
F

A
D

D
I

S
O

N
,

 
T

E
X

A
S

Member FINRA / SIPC / NYSE
© 2017 Hilltop Securities Inc.
All Rights Reserved

What is Debt?

2

Bonds are the most common type of municipal debt.

Debt 

An amount owed 
to a person or 

organization for 
funds borrowed

A means of using 
anticipated income 

and future 
purchasing power 

before it is actually 
earned

Represented and 
accounted for as a 

liability on a 
balance sheet

T
O

W
N

O
F

A
D

D
I

S
O

N
,

 
T

E
X

A
S

Member FINRA / SIPC / NYSE
© 2017 Hilltop Securities Inc.
All Rights Reserved

Why Municipalities Use Debt?

3

 To finance projects, capital assets, or make improvements to existing assets over 
their useful lives with a variety of repayment options

 So future beneficiaries pay their “fair share” for public improvements/service - debt is 
repaid overtime by citizens who are using the debt-financed asset 

 To finance larger projects on a more timely basis as compared to ‘pay as you go’ 
funding

 To help minimize the impact on property tax and/or user rates as compared to ‘pay 
as you go’ funding

 To take advantage of tax-exempt, low-cost, long-term financing



3

T
O

W
N

O
F

A
D

D
I

S
O

N
,

 
T

E
X

A
S

Member FINRA / SIPC / NYSE
© 2017 Hilltop Securities Inc.
All Rights Reserved

What Does Debt Fund?

4

Debt 
Obligations

Roads

Facilities

ParksEquipment

Water & 
Sewer

*Addison issues debt to fund infrastructure improvements.

T
O

W
N

O
F

A
D

D
I

S
O

N
,

 
T

E
X

A
S

Member FINRA / SIPC / NYSE
© 2017 Hilltop Securities Inc.
All Rights Reserved

Operating Expenses are NOT Funded by Debt?

5

 Addison does not use debt to finance its operating 

expenses  

 The Town’s Charter and State law requires the Town to 

maintain a balanced budget

 Addison does NOT operate at a deficit like the Federal 

Government



4

T
O

W
N

O
F

A
D

D
I

S
O

N
,

 
T

E
X

A
S

Member FINRA / SIPC / NYSE
© 2017 Hilltop Securities Inc.
All Rights Reserved

Different Types of Debt

6

Personal 
Debt

A person’s earnings potential 
increases up to retirement

At retirement, a common goal is to 
be ‘debt-free’ in order to not pass 

debt on to their heirs 

People can choose to live ‘debt-
free’ in which they can save 
money for large purchases or 

rent/lease major assets

Corporate 
Debt

Majority of companies have some 
form of debt

Debt is a lower cost source of 
funds and allows a higher return to 
the equity investors by leveraging 

their money

Government allows businesses to 
deduct the interest on the debt 
from corporate income taxes

Municipal 
Debt

Cities exist into perpetuity and 
must always provide services and 
maintain assets and infrastructure 

Debt puts the cost of 
improvements on both current and 
future users, freeing up funds for 

current services

In order to raise $1 million on a 
$4.5 billion tax base, Addison 

would have a one-time $0.022 tax 
rate increase.  To raise $1 million 
through the issuance of 20-year 
bonds results in $0.0016 tax rate 

over a 20-year period

T
O

W
N

O
F

A
D

D
I

S
O

N
,

 
T

E
X

A
S

Member FINRA / SIPC / NYSE
© 2017 Hilltop Securities Inc.
All Rights Reserved

Alternatives to Issuing Debt

7

Use Cash 
Reserves

• Utilizes existing 
fund balance

• Potential negative 
credit implications

• Cash flow 
concerns

Defer 
Improvements

• Potential negative 
credit implications

• Deters growth in a 
community

• May cost issuer 
more in long run in 
the form of lost 
assessed valuation 
or economic 
development

Pay-as-you-go 
(increase tax rate and/or 

create new user fees)

• Puts majority of 
cost on current 
user, not future 
user

• Budget for and 
save excess 
revenues over 
many years to use 
for capital projects/ 
improvements

• May be difficult to 
fund large projects

• Could result in 
wide tax rate 
fluctuations



5

T
O

W
N

O
F

A
D

D
I

S
O

N
,

 
T

E
X

A
S

Member FINRA / SIPC / NYSE
© 2017 Hilltop Securities Inc.
All Rights Reserved

What are Bond Ratings?

8

Bond RatingsBond Ratings

Assesses the 
ability and 

willingness of debt 
issuers to make 
full and timely 

payments 
expressed as a 

grade

Allows investment 
community to 

easily compare 
the soundness/ 

competence of an 
investment.  Good 
ratings mean well 

run cities.

The higher the 
bond rating, the 

lower the 
interest rate

T
O

W
N

O
F

A
D

D
I

S
O

N
,

 
T

E
X

A
S

Member FINRA / SIPC / NYSE
© 2017 Hilltop Securities Inc.
All Rights Reserved

Bond Ratings – Credit Criteria

9

Credit ratings are based on a variety of factors:

Revenue source and legal agreements pledged to the 
bonds

Diversification and stability of the Town’s tax/revenue 
base

Ongoing capital needs

Audited Financial Reports, fund balances and 
historical trends

Managerial and Financial policies/procedures



6

T
O

W
N

O
F

A
D

D
I

S
O

N
,

 
T

E
X

A
S

Member FINRA / SIPC / NYSE
© 2017 Hilltop Securities Inc.
All Rights Reserved

Bond Ratings

10

 Bond ratings and interest rates have an inverse correlation, which means that the higher the issuer’s
bond rating, the lower the interest rates that the issuer is able to obtain on their borrowings and vice
versa. The Town is rated “Aa1” by Moody’s and “AAA” by S&P.

Th
e
h
ig
h
e
r
th
e
b
o
n
d
ra
ti
n
g…

Th
e
lo
w
e
r
th
e
in
te
re
st
rate

Moody’s S&P
Aaa AAA
Aa1 AA+
Aa2 AA
Aa3 AA-
A1 A+
A2 A
A3 A-

Baa1 BBB+

Baa2 BBB

Baa3 BBB-

BELOW BBB or Baa3:

Non Investment 
Grade/Junk

Addison

Moody’s:

Aa1

S&P:  
AAA

T
O

W
N

O
F

A
D

D
I

S
O

N
,

 
T

E
X

A
S

Member FINRA / SIPC / NYSE
© 2017 Hilltop Securities Inc.
All Rights Reserved

 Addison’s Fiscal Year (FY) 2018 total tax rate is $0.55 per

$100 of Taxable Assessed Valuation (“TAV”).

Municipal Tax Rates are divided into two components:

• Interest and Sinking (I&S) which can only be used to

pay the Town’s annual bonded debt payments -

$0.153042

• Maintenance and Operations* (M&O) which is used

for operating expenses of the Town - $0.396958

*Funds Public Safety, Parks, Streets, Municipal Court, etc.

Tax Rate Components

11

$0.55

M&O = 
.396958

I&S = 
.153042

FY2018 
Tax Rate

I&S Tax Rate
M&O Tax Rate



7

T
O

W
N

O
F

A
D

D
I

S
O

N
,

 
T

E
X

A
S

Member FINRA / SIPC / NYSE
© 2017 Hilltop Securities Inc.
All Rights Reserved

Existing Debt Overview

12

 As of September 30, 2017, the Town had $91,100,000 of principal and $31,830,906 of associated interest
due from 2018-2037 for a total outstanding debt of $122,930,906

 Includes debt that is repaid by taxes, water/sewer revenue, hotel occupancy tax, airport, and stormwater
revenues

T
O

W
N

O
F

A
D

D
I

S
O

N
,

 
T

E
X

A
S

Member FINRA / SIPC / NYSE
© 2017 Hilltop Securities Inc.
All Rights Reserved

Existing Debt Overview

13

Approximately 26% of the Town’s existing debt is paid by revenues other than property taxes.

*Total includes $91,100,000 of principal plus $31,830,906 of associated interest due from 2018-
2037 for a total outstanding debt of $122,930,906.

Total* Outstanding Principal and Interest Payments by Repayment Source 
As of 9/30/17



8

T
O

W
N

O
F

A
D

D
I

S
O

N
,

 
T

E
X

A
S

Member FINRA / SIPC / NYSE
© 2017 Hilltop Securities Inc.
All Rights Reserved

Debt Capacity

14

Factors in 
Determining 

Debt 
Capacity

Previous 
Obligations

Change in 
Net 

Assessed 
Value

Retirement 
From Old 

Debt

Repayment 
Schedule

Tax Rate 
Split/Debt 

Levy

Debt capacity is the Town’s ability to borrow funds under existing conditions.
T

O
W

N
O

F
A

D
D

I
S

O
N

,
 

T
E

X
A

S

Member FINRA / SIPC / NYSE
© 2017 Hilltop Securities Inc.
All Rights Reserved

Tax-Supported Debt – 10-Year Capacity at Current I&S Rate

15

 Total capacity of $61,016,000 over 10 years based on the existing I&S Tax rate of $0.153042

 Assumptions: 4.1% annual taxable assessed valuation growth for 10 years with no growth
thereafter (as provided by Town officials), 20-year level annual debt service at 4.00% in 2018,
4.50% in 2019 and 5% thereafter, and current debt service tax rate of $0.153042

10-Year 
Capacity at 

Current I&S 
Tax Rate:

$61M



9

T
O

W
N

O
F

A
D

D
I

S
O

N
,

 
T

E
X

A
S

Member FINRA / SIPC / NYSE
© 2017 Hilltop Securities Inc.
All Rights Reserved

Tax-Supported Debt – 10-Year Capacity at Current I&S Rate

16

Each additional $0.01 of debt service tax rate equals approximately $5.7 million of additional
capacity.

Estimated 10-Year Capacity

Committed but unused 
General Obligation Bonds and 

Certificates of Obligation
$32,000,000

$61,160,000

Remaining Tax-Supported Capacity $29,160,000

-

==

T
O

W
N

O
F

A
D

D
I

S
O

N
,

 
T

E
X

A
S

Member FINRA / SIPC / NYSE
© 2017 Hilltop Securities Inc.
All Rights Reserved

Legal Requirements of Issuing Debt

17

 Texas cities have specific authorization to enter into legal debt obligations as provided
in the 1876 State Constitution

 All debt obligations must be approved by the City Council and the Texas Attorney
General

 The approval process for the most common debt obligations is as shown below:

*Note:  If bond election fails, Town cannot issue CO’s for that same project for 3 years.

General Obligation 
Bonds

Certificates of 
Obligation Tax Notes Revenue Bonds

Public 
Approval/Notice 
Requirements

Bond Election
Notice of Intent to 
Issue Published in 

Local Paper
None Required None Required

Security/Pledge Taxes Only
Taxes and/or 

Revenues
Taxes and/or 

Revenues
Revenues Only

Other 
Considerations

If Election fails*, how 
does Town address 

needs?

Subject to petition by 
5% of Registered 

Voters

Maximum Maturity of 
7 Years

Mandatoy Bond 
convenants; higher 

interest rate than tax 
secured debt



10

T
O

W
N

O
F

A
D

D
I

S
O

N
,

 
T

E
X

A
S

Member FINRA / SIPC / NYSE
© 2017 Hilltop Securities Inc.
All Rights Reserved

Process for Issuing Debt

18

Phase 1

Develop Financing
Program

Prepare Documentation

Phase 4

Phase 2

Phase 3

Phase  7

Phase  6

Post Issuance 
Record Keeping & 

Reporting

Conduct Marketing, 
Sale of Debt, and 

Closing

Set Financing Terms

Coordinate Related 
Service Providers

Debt 
Issuance
Process

Coordinate Rating Agency
Review Process

Phase 5

T
O

W
N

O
F

A
D

D
I

S
O

N
,

 
T

E
X

A
S

Member FINRA / SIPC / NYSE
© 2017 Hilltop Securities Inc.
All Rights Reserved

Debt 201 – Next Steps

19

Evaluate Capital Improvement Projects

Complete ADA Transition Plan

Complete Asset Management Plan

Evaluate and prioritize needs versus capacity



Municipal Debt 
Frequently Asked Questions 

For what reason do cities issue debt?

Cities issue debt to finance public infrastructure projects such as public facilities, parks, streets,
water, sewer, and drainage improvements.  Cities also issue to debt to refinance previously issued debt
in order to lower the interest rate (like a home mortgage refinancing).

Do you issue debt to pay for operating expenses or to supplement your annual budget?

No.  The Town does not use debt to finance operating expenses (like the Federal Government);
the Town’s Charter requires the Town to maintain a balanced budget.

Why do cities utilize debt instead of using cash reserves or paying for projects when the city
can afford it without the use of debt?

Debt financing allow cities to finance projects, capital assets, or improvements to existing assets
over their useful lives with a variety of repayment options.  The tax-exempt feature of municipal debt
provides a low-cost and long-term option for financing large projects on a timelier basis as compared to
‘pay as you go’ funding.  Additionally, debt financing spreads the repayment of the debt over the useful
life of the asset being financed which allows for both current and future beneficiaries to pay their ‘fair
share’ for the public improvement/service.  This also frees up money to be available to fund current
services.  Balance is the key.

But…looking at the Town’s 2016 Audit, it says the Town has nearly $54 million in cash.  Why
not use this money instead of issuing debt?

The vast  majority  of  the $54 million  balance is  restricted for  capital  improvements that are
currently under construction (approximately $33 million).  Additionally, the Town’s existing fund balance
policy requires that at least 25% of budgeted expenditures (approximately $13 million) is maintained as
a cash balance to preserve liquidity and in anticipation of economic downturns or natural disasters.  The
majority of the remaining cash balances (approximately $7 million) are either held in restricted accounts
or are encumbered for specific purposes.

1



What, if any, are the alternatives to issuing debt?

 Cities  could  use  available  cash  reserves (e.g.  utilize  existing  fund  balances)  to  fund
projects.  When using cash reserves, there could be potential negative credit implications
as well as cash flow concerns if the fund balance is greatly depleted.  

 Cities  could  defer  or  abandon  the  purchases/improvements.   This  too  could  have
potentially negative credit implications as it  could deter taxable value growth and it
could cost the city more in long run in the form of lost assessed valuation or economic
development.  

 Cities  could  use  ‘pay-as-you-go’  financing.   ‘Pay-as-you-go’  financing  uses  current
revenues to generate excess cash through additional taxes and/or user fees to ‘save up’
over several years for a future project.  

o It could be difficult to apply this method of financing to large projects due to the
inability to have necessary funds on hand to enter into the construction contract.

o It puts the majority of the cost on a current user, and not a future user, for an
asset that has a useful life over several decades

o For example, in order to raise $1 million on $4.5 billion tax base, Addison would
have  a  one-time  $0.022  tax  rate  increase.   Alternatively,  raising  $1  million
through the issuance of 20-year bonds results in $0.0016 tax rate over a 20-year
period.   

o Implementation  of  ‘pay-as-you-go’  financing  could  result  in  wide  tax  rate
fluctuations when the Town needed to levy additional taxes to pay lump sum
payments for major projects.

How are cities able to issue debt? 

Cities have specific authority provided by the State Constitution to issue debt instruments in
order to finance public improvements. 

How is debt repaid?

Tax supported debt is repaid by the on-going collection of tax revenues.  The Town has two
components  to  its  tax  rate:   the  Maintenance  and  Operations  component  which  pays  the  costs  of
operating the Town, and the Interest & Sinking Fund component which can only be used to pay the
current annual debt service requirement.  Revenue supported debt is paid by the user fees of the specific
revenue source (water and sewer, hotel/motel occupancy taxes, etc.)

2



The Town has historically issued 20 year bonds.  Does this mean that short-lived assets are
also financed over 20 years?

No.  Even though one bond issue may be utilized, short-lived assets are financed over the term of
their useful lives and accounted for separately even within a single bond issue.

How is municipal debt different from my personal debt?

Municipal debt, by definition, is not entirely different than a home mortgage debt:  you pay an
annual principal and interest component based on a set repayment schedule based on a fixed interest
rate.  Personal debt is generally prepayable at any time, however, investors of municipal debt want
income certainty so typically municipal debt is not prepayable until 10 years after the issuance date.

I would like to be debt free by the time I retire.  Is the Town ever going to be debt free?

The approach to debt by a person is different from the approach to debt by a municipality.
While most individuals would like to be debt free, especially as they enter retirement, cities, on the other
hand, exist into perpetuity and never retire.  As a city grows, so does its gross domestic product or GDP
(financial resources) and its population.  For the benefit of the city’s current and future residents, new
infrastructure must be built, and older infrastructure must be repaired and maintained.  Cities own all
the assets and infrastructure and must maintain them and provide for service(s) accordingly.

What is our current debt service tax rate, our total tax rate?

Addison’s current tax rate is $0.55.  The debt service tax rate component (also referred to as 
Interest and Sinking- I&S) is $0.153042 and the Maintenance and Operations (M&0) component is 
$0.396958.

How much debt can we sell at our current tax rate, what assumptions are you using?

The Town has a total debt capacity of $61,160,000 over 10 years based on the existing I&S tax 
rate of $0.153042.  However, Addison already has $32 million committed in General Obligation bonds 
and Certificates of Obligation.  This means that either voters have approved bonds that have yet to be 
sold and/or Council has committed to fund future projects through other debt instruments.  These 
commitments are encumbrances against the Town’s $61 million debt capacity.  After subtracting those 
encumbrances, the Town’s remaining tax-supported capacity is $29,160,000.

Assumptions: 4.1% annual taxable assessed valuation growth for 10 years with no growth 
thereafter (as provided by Town officials), 20-year level annual debt service at 4.00% in 2018, 4.50% in 
2019 and 5% thereafter, and current debt service tax rate of $0.153042.

3



If we sell the bonds will my tax rate increase, how much?

All things being equal, the tax rate will not change as long as the Town does not exceed its 2017 
debt capacity.  However, there are a variety of other factors that can impact the tax rate.

4



   
AI-2500     5.             
Work Session and Regular Meeting
Meeting Date: 12/12/2017  
Department: Parks & Recreation

AGENDA CAPTION:
Present and Discuss the Use of Artificial Turf Within Required Landscape
Areas, per the Town's Ordinance.

BACKGROUND:
The Town’s Urban Center Zoning has minimum front yard and streetscape requirements
that apply to and were met by Meridian Square Townhomes.  The Town’s landscape
ordinance requires the use of living plant material within required landscape areas.
Meridian Square Homeowners Association installed artificial turf within the required front
yard landscape area. The installation of artificial turf has put the property in
non-compliance with the Town’s Landscape Regulations. Several Council Members
asked Staff to bring this item for discussion.

This item was brought forward to Council at the October 24, 2017, Council meeting.
During the discussion, staff was asked to conduct further research on: 

The impact of artificial turf in other communities
How other communities establish their ordinances
Environmental impacts
Aesthetics
The long-term perspective impacts on homeowners related to the installation
of artificial turf

Staff will present the findings of the requested research for discussion.

RECOMMENDATION:
Staff requests direction from Council.

Attachments
Presentation - Artificial Turf



12/7/2017

1

Landscape Ordinance
Artificial Turf

Follow Up Discussion
December 12, 2017

1

Overview of Previous Discussion
Request to Allow Artificial Turf in Required Landscape Areas

 What is the issue?  Meridian Square Homeowners Association 
installed artificial turf, which is not currently allowed, within their 
required landscape area.  Artificial Turf was installed to deal with 
issues created from heavy shade, pets and small yards.  As a 
follow up their HOA made a request of Council to allow the use of 
artificial turf within these areas.  

 Previous Discussion Point:  Staff advised Council on the 
purpose of the Town’s landscape ordinance and offered points of 
consideration regarding the intent of the ordinance and the use of 
artificial turf.

 Previous Discussion Point:  Staff identified that an ordinance 
that allows artificial turf would need to address allowable zoning, 
define quality and quantity parameters.   Subsequently, this will 
require enforcement by the Town.

 Discover:  Council directed staff to research landscape 
ordinances in other states that allow Artificial Turf,  such as 
California and present this information to council.

 Discussion Point:  This presentation will provide council with 
information regarding California Artificial Turf Ordinances, potential 
environmental impacts, aesthetics and quality control standards.  It 
will also look at how Artificial Turf is beginning to be addressed in 
Texas and provide Council with discussion options regarding 
Artificial Turf requirements in Addison.

2

DISCUSSDISCOVER DECIDE



12/7/2017

2

Sample Ordinances - California

3

Has some language in their ordinance 
that defines the use of living plant 
material in required landscape area

Numerous California cities define how artificial turf can be used in 
response to State Laws.

• April 1, 2015 the Governor issued an Executive Order that implemented mandatory  water 
reductions across the state to reduce water use by 25 percent.

• Assemby Bill 349 – Bars HOA’s that oversee common-interest developments from 
forbidding synthetic grass or turf. 

• Assemby Bill 1164 – Prohibits a city or county, from enacting or enforcing any ordinance or 
regulation that prohibits the installation of drought tolerant landscaping, synthetic grass, or 
artificial turf on residential property.

• Senate Bill 88 – Allows local agencies to impose civil liability of up to $10,000 for violations 
of water conservation programs.

Sample Ordinances - California* 
CITY RESIDENTIAL MULTI-FAMILY MIXED-USE COMMERCIAL Additional

Beverly Hills 70% 70% Not Allowed Not Allowed Not Allowed Within 
the ROW, Parkway 
or Within the 
Dripline of Heritage 
Trees.**
Requires a buffer 
between property 
line and street and 
buildings.

Glendale 50% 50% Can Not Be Visible 
From Streets

Not Allowed Not Allowed in 
Parkways**

Lawndale Allowed Not Allowed Not Allowed Not Allowed

Sacramento Allowed Allowed Allowed Allowed

Simi Valley 75% 50% 50% 50% Requires Zoning 
Clearance

Westlake Village Allowed Allowed Not Addressed Allowed

4

* Although California municipalities are required to allow artificial turf in residential zoning, the ordinances are in place to set limits 
and establish quality standards.  
** Parkways are excluded due to increased costs associated with repair of damaged utility lines. 



12/7/2017

3

Sample Ordinances - California
Environmental Impacts

 Sanitation – Reports indicate Artificial Turf can have increased bacteria levels.  Some products are now coated with anti-microbial 
agents.

 Impact on Landfills – The carpet is not biodegradable and will need to be replaced in 8-15 years.

 Soil Compaction – Installation requires compaction of subgrade.  

 Loss of Soil Dynamics – Compacted soil and loss of organic matter will deplete healthy soil bacteria and organisms.

 Increased Run-off – Compacted subgrade creates an impervious surface.

 Storm Water Pollution – Toxins from Artificial Turf can leach into storm water.  Loss of soil dynamics will prevent soil from filtering and 
cleaning ground water.  

 Air Quality – A turf area of 50’ x 50’ lawn produces enough oxygen to meet the everyday needs of a family of four 1.

 Heat Gain – Artificial turf can increase atmosphere temperature by 4o Celsius2.

Because of environmental concerns many California municipalities encourage a xeriscape over an artificial lawn 
to reduce water consumption and apply limits to the amount of Artificial Turf allowed on a lot.

A Xeriscape is a landscape design that requires little or no irrigation and limited maintenance.  

1. Maryland Agricultural Statistics Service.

2. American Meteorological Society.
5

Sample Ordinances - California

Aesthetics*

6

Attribute Xeriscape Artificial Lawn

Curb Appeal x x

Regional Sense of Place x

Showcases Color & 
Textures

x

Consistent Manicured 
Look

x

Remains Uniform x

Seasonal Changes x

*Based on report produced for Glendale, CA



12/7/2017

4

California – Compiled Quality Requirements 

7

Type
 Cut-Pile carpet.

Materials
 Blade & Backing:  Lead-free polyethylene, 

polypropylene, vegetable based product or a blend of 
the three. Nylon or plastic is not allowed.  

 InfillI:   Must be clean washed sand, silica sand, cork or 
zeolite.  Crumb rubber is not be allowed.

 Permeability:  Permeable backing with drain rate of 30” 
per hour.

 Warranty:  Have a minimum 8-year warranty.
 Tear Grab Strength:  Minimum 200 pounds.
 Tuft Bind Strength:  Minimum 8 pounds.
 Flammability:  Pass the pill burn test for flammability.

Appearance
 Color:  Include a minimum of two shades of green blade 

colors and contain a tan thatch layer.  Colors must 
mimic natural turf.

 Texture:  Three-dimension ridge, spine cross-section 
and uneven tips.

 Length:   Blade length between 1-1/2” – 2-1/2”.
 Thickness:  Tuft spacing of no more than 3/8” spacing 

between rows.

Typical Turf Installation
Image Courtesy of the  Synthetic Turf Council

Typical Turf & Thatch Coloring
Image Courtesy of SynLawn

California – Compiled Quality Requirements 

8

Installation

 Seams:  Sewn seams.

 Edges:  Edges not visible.

 Base:  Installed over a compacted aggregate base that allows for adequate drainage.

 Anchoring:  Permanently anchored.

Maintenance

 Must be maintained in clean and attractive conditions.

 Shall not contain weeds, holes, tears, stains, discolorations, faded, seam separations, uplifted surfaces, heat degradation, 
depressions, odors or excessive wear.

 Damaged or worn areas must be repaired or removed and replaced in a manner that results in consistent appearance with the 
existing synthetic lawn.

 Be groomed periodically to prevent compacted and flattened turf.



12/7/2017

5

Comparative Cities - Addison

9

Has some language in their ordinance 
that defines the use of living plant 
material in required landscape area

Landscape Ordinance

Allen

Carrollton

Coppell

Frisco

Farmers Branch

Flower Mound

Grapevine

Irving

Lewisville

McKinney

Plano

Richardson

University Park

Within required landscape space calls for either:
• the use of living plants 

or
• specifically states artificial or man-made 

plants are not allowed.

Some of our comparative cities go a step further and do 
not allow artificial turf in front yards or where visible 
from the public Right-of-Way.

Texas Research – Environmental

Type of Surface
Maximum daytime surface 
temperature

Minimum nocturnal surface 
temperature

Green growing Bermuda turf 88°F (31 °C) 75°F (24 °C)

Dry bare soil 102°F (39 °C) 79°F (26 °C)

Brown summer-
dormant Bermuda
turf

126°F (52 °C) 81°F (27 °C)

Synthetic turf 158°F (70 °C) 84°F (29 °C)

10

Heat Island - Comparisons of four surfaces in College Station, TX

Storm Water- Some Texas municipalities are studying whether Artificial Turf should be considered an
Impervious surface.  The City of Austin Water Protection Ordinance has determined Artificial Turf is 
impervious unless the installer can provide design information indicating how the soil is kept pervious and 
infiltration of storm water in ensured.



12/7/2017

6

11

Staff Recommendation

Staff does not recommend the modification to the Town landscape ordinance to allow the installation of Artificial Turf in the
required landscape area.

 Does not meet the environmental objectives of Addison’s landscape ordinance.

 Requires modifications to the landscape ordinance.

 Would require continued staff oversight.

If Council chooses to allow the expanded use of Artificial Turf, staff recommends limiting the following items:

 Establish quality standards similar to example ordinances.

 Limit quantity of application to ensure a portion of the required landscape area is vegetated with live plants.

 Limit zoning location in which Artificial Turf is Allowed

Artivle VI. – Landscape Regulations
Sec. 34-201 – Purpose

Aid in stabilizing the environment's ecological balance by 
contributing to the processes of air purification, oxygen 

regeneration, groundwater recharge, and (stormwater) runoff 
retardation, while at the same time aiding in noise, glare and heat 

abatement.

12

Artificial Turf Ordinance- Quality
Turf Component Allowed Not Allowed

Blade & Backing Lead-free polyethylene, polypropylene, vegetable-based or combination Nylon or Plastic

Infill Clean washed sand, silica sand, cork or zeolite Crumb Rubber

Permeability Permeable backing with 30” per hour or > drain rate

Warranty Minimum 8-year warranty

Tear Grab Strength Minimum 200 pounds

Tuft Bind Strength Minimum 8 pounds

Flammability Pass the pill burn test for flammability

Appearance Allowed Not Allowed

Color Include a minimum of two shades of green blade colors and contain a tan 
thatch color.  Colors must mimic natural turf.

Colors that do not 
mimic natural turf.

Texture Three-dimension ridge, spine cross-section and uneven tips

Length Blade between 1-1/2” – 2-1/2”

Thickness Tuft spacing of no more than 3/8” between rows.

Installation Allowed Not Allowed

Seams Sewn Seams

Edges Edges not visible

Base Compacted aggregate that allows for adequate drainage

Anchoring Permanently anchored

Maintenance Allowed Not Allowed

Maintained in clean and attractive conditions

Wear Shall not contains weeds, holes, tears, stains, discolorations, fading, seam 
separations, uplifted surfaces, heat degradations, depressions, odors or 
excessive wear

Damage Damaged and worn areas must be repaired or removed and replaced in a 
manner that results in consistent appearance with existing synthetic lawn.

Grooming Be groomed periodically to prevent compacted and flattened turf.

Subjective Items

 How are natural turf colors defined and assured?

 How is faded color determined?

 How is worn turf determined?

 How to discern between repair or replacement being 
required?

Points to Consider

 Should an increase in impervious surfaces impact storm 
water fees?

 Should there be other environmental impact fees to 
offset oxygen reduction and increase in storm water 
pollution?



12/7/2017

7

Artificial Turf Ordinance - Quantity

13

100 -90% Artificial Turf 80-75% Artificial Turf 60-50% Artificial Turf

Artificial Turf Ordinance - Location

14

.

Definitions

 Single Family – Freestanding residential home.

 Duplex – Two single family homes that share a common wall.

 Townhome – Single-family residences built side by side and includes the land the home is 
on.

 Condo –Community of units, in which the individual owns the interior of the unit but not the 
common space.

 Apartment – Multi-family property owned and managed by a landlord.

 Live-Work Unit – Townhome type unit that includes a business work space.



12/7/2017

8

Artificial Turf  - Options

15

OPTION 1 OPTION 2 OPTION 3 OPTION 4

Not allow Artificial 
Turf in any front yard 

or within any 
required landscape 

areas.

No change to current 
ordinance.

Single Family / 
Duplex zoned 
properties are 

exempt and all other 
zoning must meet 

the required 
landscape area 

objectives that call 
for the use of living 

plant material.

Allow in all Single 
Family, Duplex , 
Townhome and 
Townhome like 

properties.

Allow in Single 
Family / Duplex 

Zoning, plus Urban 
Center Townhome 
Zoning with HOA 

Oversight.

Artificial Turf  - Options

16

OPTION 1 Pros

Not allow Artificial 
Turf in any front yard 

or within any 
required landscape 

areas.

 Protect Town from 
expensive repairs as a 
result of utility repair 
and installation.

 Consistent ordinance 
with some of our 
comparative cities.

 No environmental 
impacts regarding heat 
gain, loss of soil 
dynamics and run off.

 Would require 
grandfathering in 
or removal of 
existing artificial 
lawns within front 
yards.

Cons



12/7/2017

9

Artificial Turf  - Options

17

OPTION 2 Pros
 Keeps the status 

quo.

 Consistent 
ordinance with some 
of our comparative 
cities.

 No additional 
environmental 
impacts regarding 
heat gain, loss of 
soil dynamics and 
run off.

 Does not treat 
owner occupied 
properties equally.

 Would require the 
removal of non-
complying 
Artificial Turf.

Cons

No change to current 
ordinance.

Single Family / 
Duplex zoned 
properties are 

exempt and all other 
zoning must meet 

the required 
landscape area 

objectives that call 
for the use of living 

plant material.

Artificial Turf  - Options

18

OPTION 3 Pros
 Limits use of 

Artificial Turf to 
owner occupied 
properties.

 Treats all owner 
occupied properties 
equal.

 Would require 
enforcement & 
oversight by Town.

 Would require 
expensive repairs if 
located over utilities.

 Increase environmental 
impacts regarding heat 
gain, loss of soil 
dynamics and run off.

Cons

Allow in all Single 
Family, Duplex , 
Townhome and 
Townhome like 

properties.



12/7/2017

10

Artificial Turf  - Options

19

OPTION 4 Pros
 Creates a limited-use 

area that only applies to 
the Urban Center where 
heavy shade, small 
yards and pet use is an 
increased issue.

 Requires HOA’s to 
enforce and oversee.

 Allows use of Artificial 
Turf in a limited capacity 
as some of the unknown 
concerns are being 
researched. 

 Would require 
secondary  
enforcement & 
oversight by Town of 
individual property 
owner if HOA’s did 
not fulfill their 
obligations.

 Would require 
expensive repairs if 
located over utilities.

Cons

Allow in Single 
Family / Duplex 

Zoning, plus Urban 
Center Townhome 
Zoning with HOA 

Oversight.

Discussion

20



   
AI-2499     7.             
Work Session and Regular Meeting
Meeting Date: 12/12/2017  
Department: City Manager

AGENDA CAPTION:
Consider Action to Approve the November 14, 2017 and the November 28, 2017
Regular City Council Meeting Minutes.

BACKGROUND:
The City Secretary has prepared meeting minutes for Council approval.

RECOMMENDATION:
Administration recommends approval.

Attachments
Minutes - November 14, 2017
Minutes - November 28, 2017



D R A F T
OFFICIAL ACTIONS OF THE ADDISON CITY

COUNCIL
 

November 14, 2017

Addison Town Hall, 5300 Belt Line Rd., Dallas, TX 75254
5:00 p.m. Dinner, Executive Session & Work Session 7:30 p.m. Regular Meeting
 

Present: Mayor Chow; Mayor Pro Tempore Hughes; Deputy Mayor Pro Tempore
Duffy; Councilmember Angell; Councilmember Braun; Councilmember
Walden; Councilmember Ward 

 

 

               

Closed (executive) session of the Addison City Council pursuant to:

Section 551.071, Tex. Gov. Code, to conduct a private consultation with its
attorney on a matter in which the duty of the attorney to the governmental body
under the Texas Disciplinary Rules of Professional Conduct of the State Bar of
Texas clearly conflicts with Chapter 551, Tex. Gov. Code, pertaining to:

Town of Addison v. Landmark Structures I, L.P. and Urban Green Energy
Cause No. DC-15-07691 44th Judicial  Court, Dallas, County

Executive Session convened at 5:07 p.m.

 
 

In accordance with Texas Government Code, Chapter 551, the City Council will
reconvene into Regular Session to consider action, if any, on matters discussed
in Executive Session.

Open Session reconvened at 6:18 p.m. with no action taken regarding the above
Executive Session item.

The meeting recessed until the Work Session began at 6:30 p.m.
 



WORK SESSION
 
 

  3.    Present and Discuss the Status Update of the Financial Plan and
Rate Model for Water and Sewer Utility Rates for the Town's Use
with Raftelis Financial Consultants, Inc. (RFC).

Chief Financial Officer Olivia Riley introduced Angie Flores with
Raftelis Financial Consultants, Inc., a utility rate consulting firm.  Ms.
Flores presented to council the Outlook for 2018 that included
Revenues and Expenses from 2012 through 2017.  She then
provided the forecast for 2018 based on current rates.  There will be
a deficit of $500,000 in 2018 and a cumulative deficit of $1.1M
through 2023.  Total expenses for FY 2018 is projected at $12.3M.

The Town's Financial Plan includes revenue requirements for Capital
costs, Operations and Maintenance, and Transfers.  She explained
that Pass Through Rates are the cost of purchasing water from
Dallas Water Utilities and the Trinity River Authority.  Model
assumptions through FY 2023 include a 5% annual increase for both.

Ms. Flores then reviewed the Town's current staffing level of sixteen
and a projection that includes seven additional full-time employees
beginning in 2019.  She reviewed the advantages and disadvantages
of maintaining the current staffing levels. The cost of the additional
personnel and related vehicles will cost approximately $550,000. For
the years 2019 to 2021 additional staff and vehicle needs are
expected to cost $570,000.

The current Fund Balance must remain at a minimum of 25% of the
annual operating costs.  General discussion among Council
determined that percentage should stay the same as the new
financial policy is drafted.   Utility rate adjustment approaches were
discussed with Council consensus to implement systematic
adjustments with annual reviews.

The current five year Capital Improvement Plan for utilities includes
$15M to be partially funded with FY 2016 bond proceeds and the FY
2018 Capital Plan.  Council consensus was to consider future
financing of capital improvements with a mix of bond funds and
excess Fund Balance.

A Model for the Water and Sewer Utility Rates and Financial Plan will
be presented at a future meeting.

  

 



  4.    Present and Discuss the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations
of the Treadway Commission (COSO) Framework and Introduce
an Internal Control Program Outline for the Town of Addison.

Chief Financial Officer Olivia Riley provided a brief background of
“COSO”.  The Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the
Treadway Commission is an internal control framework.  The Town of
Addison uses the framework as outlined in “The Green Book” which
adapts control principals for a government environment.  The
purpose is to help the Town run its operations efficiently and
effectively and to comply with applicable laws and regulations. 
Further, the Committee provides leadership, guidance on risk
management, and fraud deterrence.   CFO Riley reviewed the
components and steps of the Internal Control Program and a
potential 2018 schedule for implementation and completion of the
program. Results and recommendations for improvement will be
reported to city management.   Processes will be documented for
future staff.

City Manager Pierson advised the Council that the cost for the
program is unknown at this point however, the Town budgets
approximately $50k per year for efficiency projects.  The next briefing
on this matter will be in March 2018.
 

  

 

  5.    Present and Discuss an Update on the Cotton Belt Regional Rail
Project.

Deputy City Manager Ashley Mitchell updated the Council on the
DART Cotton Belt Project, which is a 26-mile Regional Rail
Corridor.   DCM Mitchell advised that this Regional Rail system is
diesel/electric and not an electric Light Rail.  The timeline for the
project indicates completion by the end of 2022.   DCM Mitchell
stated that community involvement is a key factor with several
upcoming meetings.  It was noted that “Quiet Zones” in or near
Addison are being included and are authorized for 5 years.  After that
the Town will need to reapply for Quiet Zone designations.  She
further advised that the Addison Road crossing will not be an aerial
crossing due to its proximity to Addison Airport however the Midway
Road Crossing will be above grade.  DART has committed to making
this crossing visually complementary to the existing Wheeler Bridge. 
A Council resolution for formal action will be presented in the future
regarding the Midway Road crossing.

Charles Goff, Assistant Director of Development Services and

  



Planning, then presented information on two Special Study Areas in
the Addison Circle District called for the Comprehensive Plan.  Staff
is recommending these be combined into one area.  A Professional
Services Agreement with Kimley-Horn will be proposed in December
2017.  Community input will be sought and the study will take
approximately four months to complete.

The Work Session adjourned at 7:58 p.m.

The Regular Session convened at 8:03 p.m.
 

 

REGULAR MEETING
 

Pledge of Allegiance
 

  Announcements and Acknowledgements regarding Town and
Council Events and Activities

Discussion of Events/Meetings
City Manager Wes Pierson announced that Town of Addison Human
Resource Director Passion Hayes was named the 2017 Ogletree
Deakins HR Professional of the Year by the North Dallas Chamber of
Commerce.   Upcoming meetings and events:  A public work shop
regarding the city's ADA Transition Plan is being held at the Addison
Conference Center on November 30, 2017.  DART Cottonbelt open
house meetings are scheduled for November 29 and 30, and on
December 7, 2017.  The tree lighting is planned for November 17th
and the Vitruvian Park Lighting is scheduled for November 24th. 
More information on these events is available on the Town website. 
Town offices will be closed in observance of Thanksgiving on
November 23rd and 24th.  

Mayor Chow advised that he attended a meeting (today) of the
Restaurant Owners and Managers. 

 
 

  Public Comment.
The City Council invites citizens to address the City Council on any
topic not on this agenda. Please fill out a City Council Appearance
Card and submit it to a city staff member prior to Public Participation.
Speakers are allowed up to three (3) minutes per speaker with 
fifteen (15) total minutes on items of interest or concern and not on



fifteen (15) total minutes on items of interest or concern and not on
items that are on the current agenda. In accordance with the Texas
Open Meetings Act, the City Council cannot take action on items not
listed on the agenda. The Council may choose to place the item on a
future agenda.

There were no requests to speak.
 

  Consent Agenda:
All items listed under the Consent Agenda are considered routine by the City Council and will be
enacted by one motion with no individual consideration. If individual consideration of an item is
requested, it will be pulled from the Consent Agenda and discussed separately.

 

  7.    Consider Action to Approve the October 24, 2017 Regular Meeting
Minutes.

  

 

  8.    Consider Action to Approve a Resolution for the Purchase and
Installation of Outdoor Pool Filters and Associated Elements
from Sunbelt Pools for the Addison Athletic Club and Authorize
the City Manager to Execute the Agreement in an Amount not to
Exceed $112,000.

  

 

  9.    Consider Action to Approve the Purchase of (2) 2018 Sedans, (1)
2018 Electric Vehicle (1) 2018 ½ Ton Truck, (2) 2018 1 Ton
Trucks, (1) 2018 Sport Utility Vehicle, (1) 2018 Mini-Excavator, (1)
2018 Brush Chipper, (1) 2018 Aerial Lift Truck, (2) 2018 Tractor
Mowers, (1) 2018 Grasshopper Mower, under the Town’s
Inter-local Agreement with the Texas Local Government
Purchasing Cooperatives known as BuyBoard, Texas SmartBuy
and US Communities in an Amount not to Exceed $680,005.52.

  

 

  10.    Consider Action to Approve a Resolution for a License Agreement
with Dallas Area Rapid Transit (DART) to Allow Operation and
Maintenance of a Sanitary Sewer Line within DART Right-of-Way
at Dallas Parkway and Crossing the Cotton Belt Line and
Authorize the City Manager to Execute the Agreement.

Motion to approve the above consent agenda items-
Councilmember Braun; second by Councilmember Ward;
motion passed with a vote of 7-0.

 

  

 

Regular Items



 

  11.    Present, Discuss and Consider Action on a Resolution for a Grant
Funding Agreement with The Cavanaugh Flight Museum and
Authorize the City Manager to Execute the Agreement in an
Amount not to Exceed $50,000.

Deputy City Manager Cheryl Delaney advised the Council that the
Cavanaugh Flight Museum submitted a Grant Funding Application to
the Town requesting $50,000.  Upon staff review it was determined
the request is for a public purpose that enhances the Town of
Addison. 

Listed below are the grant uses submitted in the non- profit
organization’s application:
Marketing funds for advertising museum events
Executing flyovers
Operational funds needed to fly multiple aircraft

Additionally, Cavanaugh Flight Museum is requesting deletion of the
following requirement located in Section VIII. Additional
Requirements of the Organization, subsection (b) of the agreement
included in the attached resolution:  "...and a schedule of all board
meetings. A representative from the City may choose to attend any
scheduled board meetings. The City shall be immediately be notified
of any changes to the schedule...

The reason given for this request is that the board meetings are
conducted as closed meetings. Staff is requesting direction from
Council regarding the deletion of this requirement.
 
Motion to approve with modification of the wording as
requested– Deputy Mayor Pro Tempore Duffy; second by Mayor
Pro Tempore Hughes; motion passed with a vote of 7-0.
 

  

 

  12.    Present, Discuss and Consider Action on a Resolution Appointing
Members to the Planning & Zoning Commission.

Charles Goff reviewed the appointment process for boards. Terms
are for two years beginning in January.  Newly elected council
members may nominate members.  It was noted that there were 23
applicants.

Following a brief discussion of the Planning and Zoning applicants,
the following were presented for approval:
Place 4: Denise Quintanilla (selected by Tom Braun)

  



Place 4: Denise Quintanilla (selected by Tom Braun)
Place 5: Eileen Resnik (selected by Lori Ward)
Place 6: Jerry Dougan (selected by Mayor Chow)
Place 7: Thomas Souers (selected by Ivan Hughes)

Mayor Chow thanked P&Z members who have served in the past.

Motion to approve [as presented]- Councilmember Walden;
second by Deputy Mayor Pro Tempore Duffy; motion passed
with a vote of 7-0.
 

 

  13.    Present, Discuss and Consider Action on a Resolution Appointing
Members to the Board of Zoning Adjustment.

Charles Goff explained to the Council that the Board of Zoning
Adjustment (BZA) hears variance requests, hears appeals, and
serves as the Fire Code BZA and the Building Code BZA. He noted
that the board’s actions are final in matters and may supersede
Council actions.

Following a brief Council discussion of the Board of Zoning
Adjustment applicants, the following were presented for approval:
Place 4: EJ Copeland (selected by Tom Braun)
Place 5: Jeanne Dunlap (selected by Lori Ward)
Place 6: Gary Krupkin (selected by Mayor Chow)
Place 7: Matt Horine (selected by Ivan Hughes)

Motion to approve [as presented]- Deputy Mayor Pro Tempore
Duffy; second by Councilmember Walden; motion passed with a
vote of 7-0.
 

  

 

  14.    Present, Discuss, And Consider Action on an Ordinance Granting A
Meritorious Exception for Poochville, Located at 15070 E.
Beltway Parkway, from the Code of Ordinances, Chapter 62
Section 62-185. - Specifications for Detached Signs in Order to
Permit a Sign Exceeding the Effective Area Requirements.

Charles Goff presented this request for a Meritorious Exception to the
Council.  He reviewed the location of the sign in question, adding the
sign is a multi-tenant sign and the requestors have utilized the entire
sign on one side (opposite side blocked from view by trees according
to the requestor.)  Further, the sign was changed without a permit. 
Staff is recommending denying the request.  Requestor Tina Austin

  



of Poochville told the Council that the building has always been a
single-tenant building and the city’s requirements for lesser square
footage would be cause her business to be less visible.  Other
speakers in favor were Dan Smith and Dan Miller of Legacy Signs of
Texas.    After Council discussion, the following motion was made.
 
Motion to deny- Deputy Mayor Pro Tempore Duffy; second by
Councilmember Ward; motion passed with a vote 6-1 [Mayor
Chow voted no.]
  

 

  15.    Present and Discuss the Oktoberfest 2017 Operations and
Financial Reconciliation.

Mark Acevedo, Director of General Services, provided information on
the recently held Oktoberfest.  He reviewed the changes that were
implemented this year that included age 12 and under free admission
as well as Thursday and Sunday free admission.    Accounting
Supervisor Ashley Boatright reviewed the attendance and ticket sales
from 2013 to 2017.  The total revenue for 2017 was $1,793,611 and
total attendance was 48,046 people.  Total expenses for the event
were $1,783,881. 

There was a brief discussion on possible changes for the 2018
event.  Mr. Acevedo added that staff will reevaluate whether the free
Sunday should be offered again.  The Mayor stated he would like to
have the Intercontinental Hotel return to the event.

  

 

  16.    Present and Discuss Addison's Three-Year Strategic
Communications Plan.

Communications Director Mary Rosenbleeth presented the Town's
Strategic Communications Plan, stating the purpose of the plan is to
frame internal and external communication, set the organization's
priorities, target stakeholders and identify resources. She stated the
Guiding Principles and explained the four Goals of the plan.

The responsibilities of the Communications Team include website
administration, social media administration, media relations, stock
photography management, monitoring and analyzing press and
social media coverage, brand management, and monitoring and
editing all external communication pieces.  Further, the team creates
and distributes a weekly Town e-newsletter, handles crisis
communications, and markets all Addison produced special events. 
Promoting tourism, Town programs and events are also a focus. 

  



Director Rosenbleeth reviewed all the options/avenues available for
communication with residents, employees, visitors, and the media. 
She reviewed the 2017 accomplishments and the 2018 goals.  There
was a brief discussion with Council on methods needed for
communication between residents and the restaurants, and with the
hotels regarding their events. 

 
 

  17.    Present, Discuss, and Consider Action on a Resolution for an
Agreement with North Rock Construction, LLC for Park
Renovations at Dome Park and Authorize the City Manager to
Execute the Agreement  in an Amount not to Exceed $155,000.

Michael Kashuba, Director of Parks and Recreation, advised he
would like his presentation to be for this agenda item and the
following item since they are related.  He stated that in 2013 Oncor
notified the Town that the playground located on their easement
along Redding Trail would need to be removed for safety reasons
and needed to be done by September 2017.   A new playground site
was selected at Dome Park.  In July 2017 Council
authorized $250,000 in funding.    Several public meetings were held
on the design.  The existing trees and shrubs will be preserved during
the process.  It was noted that the existing light poles will be utilized
and there will be no need for a parking area.  Renderings of the park
layout and playground equipment were provided.

Bids were received in September 2017 and staff is recommending the
low bidder, North Rock Construction, be awarded this project for site
improvements.  Mr. Kashuba pointed out that the contract has the
previous council meeting date of October 24, 2017 and he will
request the contractor strike that and write in today's date.

Motion to approve [in an amount not to exceed $155k] with a
correction to the contract date- Councilmember Angell; second
by Mayor Pro Tempore Hughes; motion approved with a vote of
7-0.

 

  

 

  18.    Present, Discuss, and Consider Action on a Resolution for the   



  18.    Present, Discuss, and Consider Action on a Resolution for the
Purchase of a Playground and Associated Elements from
Recreation Consultants of North Texas for Dome Park and
Authorize the City Manager to Execute the Agreement in an
Amount not to Exceed $94,826.

Motion to approve- Councilmember Braun; second by
Councilmember Ward; motion passed with a vote of 7-0.

  

 

  19.    Present, Discuss, and Consider Action on a Resolution to Adopt
the Amended Naming and Recognition Policy for City Owned
Structures, Trails and Parks.

On June 9, 2015, City Council approved a resolution adopting the
Naming and Recognition Policy for town owned structures, parks and
trails.  The criteria for naming a structure, trail or park was based on
an individual or corporation meeting one of the following criteria: 
  

The individual was a former Mayor and had made a significant
contribution of service toward the betterment of the Addison
community and had been out of office for a minimum of 5 years
Individuals or corporations who donate at a minimum of
$1,000,000 in land, services or funds to Addison
Dog parks may be named for an individual or corporation with a
minimum donated amount of $250,000

Individuals or corporations that did not meet the criteria above had no
process of receiving recognition for their contributions or donations.
Instead, the policy directed staff to find creative ways to recognize
these individuals and entities.

At the request of several Council Members, staff brought this policy
back to Council at the September 13, 2017 work session to discuss
potential changes that might be considered. During the discussion,
Council gave the following direction to staff:
 
Bring back a draft policy that includes the original policy adopted in
2007 with blanks for thresholds on financial contribution and years of
service 

Include a clause that will give the Town the ability to work with
developers to name new streets
Include a clause that will allow Council to consider exceptional
cases that do not meet the criteria

Staff drafted the amended policy and is requesting Council discuss

  



the amendments and amounts for thresholds.  Following a brief
discussion, the following motion was made.

Motion to approve to include thresholds of 25 years of service
and $1M in financial contributions respectively- Councilmember
Walden; second by Mayor Pro Tempore Hughes; motion
approved with a vote of 7-0.

 

  20.    Present, Discuss and Consider Action on a Resolution to Elect a
Suburban Cities' Representative to the Dallas Central Appraisal
District Board of Directors.

City Manager Pierson explained that the Dallas Central Appraisal
District has 5 members on its Board of Directors representing the
following groups: 
  

Dallas County
City of Dallas
Suburban Cities
Dallas Independent School District
Suburban School Districts

Additionally, John Ames, Dallas County Tax Assessor/Collector, is an
ex-officio member.

Because there is no "at large" voting entitlement, an entity may vote
only for candidates nominated for the position that represents that
entity. For Addison, this is the Suburban City Representative. Each
Suburban City was given the opportunity to make a nomination for
this position. The deadline for this nomination by resolution was
October 16, 2017. Addison did not submit a nomination.

The current Suburban City Representative is Michael Hurtt, who also
serves as the Chairman of the Board, and has expressed interest in
serving another term. The nominations for the 2018-2020 Suburban
City Representative are:
  

Brett Franks, nominated by the City of Sachse
Mike Howard, nominated by the City of Irving
Michael Hurtt, nominated by the cities of Desoto, Farmers
Branch, Ovilla, and Richardson

It was noted that Michael Hurtt is experienced and the consensus of
council was to cast their vote for him.

  



Motion to vote for Michael Hurtt- Mayor Pro Tempore Hughes;
second by Councilmember Angell; motion approved with a vote
of 7-0.
 

 

  21.    Present, Discuss and Consider Action on a Resolution to Appoint
Christie Wilson as the Interim City Secretary.

Motion to approve- Mayor Pro Tempore Hughes; second by
Councilmember Angell; motion approved by a vote of 7-0.

Meeting adjourned at 9:55 p.m.

  

 

Adjourn Meeting
 

NOTE: The City Council reserves the right to meet in Executive Session closed
to the public at any time in the course of this meeting to discuss matters listed on
the agenda, as authorized by the Texas Open Meetings Act, Texas Government
Code, Chapter 551, including §551.071 (private consultation with the attorney for
the City); §551.072 (purchase, exchange, lease or value of real property);
§551.074 (personnel or to hear complaints against personnel); §551.076
(deployment, or specific occasions for implementation of security personnel or
devices); and §551.087 (economic development negotiations). Any decision held
on such matters will be taken or conducted in Open Session following the
conclusion of the Executive Session.
 

___________________________
Mayor-Joe Chow

Attest:

_______________________________
City Secretary Christie Wilson



D R A F T

 

 

        

 



 

 

  



 

 

 

 



 

 

  

 

  

 

  

 

  

 



  

 

 

  



 

 

 



   
AI-2498     8.             
Work Session and Regular Meeting
Meeting Date: 12/12/2017  
Department: Infrastructure- Development Services
Pillars: Excellence in Asset Management

AGENDA CAPTION:
Consider Action to Approve a Resolution with Felix Construction Company, Inc.,
for the Rehabilitation of the 2.0 Million Gallon Surveyor Ground Storage
Tank and Pipeline Improvements Project and Authorize the City Manager to
Execute the Agreement in an Amount not to Exceed $2,511,711.

BACKGROUND:
The Town owns and operates two ground storage tanks, one at the Celestial Pump
Station located at 5510 Celestial Road and one at the Surveyor Pump Station located at
15130 Surveyor Road. The Surveyor Pump Station and ground storage tank was built in
1976 and consists of a potable water pumping house and a 2.0 million gallon ground
storage tank. The Celestial Pump Station and ground storage tank was built in 1988 and
consists of a potable water pumping house and a 6.0 million gallon ground storage tank.

In 2014, the Town commissioned an engineering study on all of its water storage
facilities to prepare a long-term capital improvements program. All projects identified in
the engineering study were prioritized based the risk of failure of the facility. Repairs to
the Addison Circle Elevated Storage Tank, the highest priority project, were completed
in early 2015. The second priority project is the repairs to the Surveyor Ground Storage
Tank (GST).

The scope of the Surveyor project will include replacement of the exterior coating on the
roof of the ground storage tank, repairs to several areas of failed concrete on both the
interior and exterior of the ground storage tank, several safety and operational
improvements, the installation of a secondary pipe that is used to fill the storage tank,
and the installation of an emergency power generation system. 

Design was completed for the project in September 2017 and the project was advertised
on Bidsync. The plan development included a base bid, which included all elements of
the above scope and an additive alternate to replace all of the security fencing
surrounding the site. The bids closed on November 3, 2017 and the Town received two
bids. Plans and specifications for the project can be found on the Town of Addison
website under the Finance Department tab on the page titled Doing Business with
Addison. The bid comparison can be found in the attached bid tabulation document.



Description Felix Construction Company Joe Funk Construction, Inc.
Base Bid $2,425,311 $3,149,535
Add Alt 1 $86,400 $42,525
Total $2,511,711 $3,192,060

Felix Construction Company has been determined to be the lowest responsible bidder.
Staff has reviewed their references and found them to be capable of performing this
work. There are sufficient funds available for the base bid as well as the added alternate.
Therefore, it is recommended that both elements be awarded. The contract value for this
project is $2,511,711 and is budgeted for in the Utilities Capital Improvements Funds.
This project was also adopted by Council as part of the Fiscal Year 2018 Capital
Improvement Plan. The budget for this project is $2,550,000 and will be paid for with
bond funds. The project is expected to take approximately 6 months to complete,
weather permitting.

RECOMMENDATION:
Administration recommends approval.

Attachments
Resolution with Contract - Felix Construction Company
Bid Tabulation - Bid 18-03
Certificate of Interested Parties - Felix Construction Company



TOWN OF ADDISON, TEXAS 

RESOLUTION NO. ________ 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF ADDISON, 
TEXAS APPROVING A CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT BETWEEN THE 
TOWN OF ADDISON AND FELIX CONSTRUCTION COMPANY, FOR 
SERVICES RELATED TO THE REHABILITATION OF THE 2.0 MG 
SURVEYOR GROUND STORAGE TANK AND PIPELINE 
IMPROVEMENTS PROJECT IN AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED 
$2,511,711 AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE THE 
AGREEMENT, AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF ADDISON, 
TEXAS: 
 
 Section 1. The Contract Agreement between the Town of Addison and Felix 
Construction Company, for services related to Rehabilitation of the 2.0 MG Surveyor Ground 
Storage Tank and Pipeline Improvements Project in an amount not to exceed $2,511,711, a copy 
of which is attached to this Resolution as Exhibit A and which incorporates the Town of Addison’s 
General and Specific Conditions for construction contracts, and the Advertisement for Bids, 
Instruction to Bidders, General Provisions, Special Provisions, Plans and other bid documents, is 
hereby approved. The City Manager is hereby authorized to execute the agreement. 
 
 Section 2. This Resolution shall take effect from and after its date of adoption. 
 
 PASSED AND APPROVED by the City Council of the Town of Addison, Texas this the 
12th day of December, 2017. 
 
 
       ___________________________  
       Joe Chow, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
By: _______________________________      
 Christie Wilson, Interim City Secretary 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
By: _______________________________      
 Brenda N. McDonald, City Attorney 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



EXHIBIT A 
 



 

 



12/01/2017 Page 1 of 2

BID TABULATION REPORT

Felix Construction Company Joe Funk Contruction, Inc. 

BID OPENED : 11/3/2017

ITEM DESCRIPTION UNITS QTY  UNIT PRICE  TOTAL COST  UNIT PRICE  TOTAL COST 

1 1 LS  $59,022.00  $59,022.00  $120,000.00  $120,000.00 

2 2 EA  $2,937.00  $5,874.00  $3,000.00  $6,000.00 

3 Bonds and insurance, complete in place. 1 LS  $36,616.00  $36,616.00  $25,000.00  $25,000.00 

4 1 LS  $288,366.00  $288,366.00  $460,000.00  $460,000.00 

5 1 LS  $237,722.00  $237,722.00  $262,575.00  $262,575.00 

6 20 LF  $294.00  $5,880.00  $400.00  $8,000.00 

7 1 LS  $10,454.00  $10,454.00  $8,900.00  $8,900.00 

8 170 LF  $106.00  $18,020.00  $30.00  $5,100.00 

9 1 LS  $7,048.00  $7,048.00  $8,100.00  $8,100.00 

10 1 LS  $4,023.00  $4,023.00  $10,000.00  $10,000.00 

11 1 LS  $198,219.00  $198,219.00  $140,000.00  $140,000.00 

12 1 LS  $121,946.00  $121,946.00  $280,000.00  $280,000.00 

13 1 LS  $265,072.00  $265,072.00  $596,000.00  $596,000.00 

Rehabilitation of the 2.0 Surveyor GST  and Pipeline 
Imrpvoments Bid No 18-03

Construction of the Rehabilitation of the 2.0 MG GST and 
Pipeline Improvements Project including Mobilization (no 
more than 5% of total bid), exclusive of Items No. 2 
through 24, complete in place

Project Signs, per detail and contract documents, 
complete in place

Furnish and Install exterior concrete repairs per contract 
documents, including surface preparation and field 
coating, use of joint sealants, caulking and grouting, and 
fluid applied to roofing. Work includes all material and 
equipment, safety tools & plans, removal, haul off and 
disposal of existing concrete, per most recent federal, 
state and local regulations, complete in place

Furnish and Install exterior coating system per contract 
documents, including surface preparation and coating all 
exterior metal surfaces of the tank. Work includes all 
material and equipment, safety tools & plans, removal, 
haul off and disposal of all traces of coating, per most 
recent federal, state and local regulations, complete in 
place

Install new tank roof guardrail per contract documents, 
complete in place

Remove and install the new roof vent per contract 
documents, complete in place

Remove and install the new chain link fence per contract 
documents including the chain in gate, complete in place

Remove and replace all ladder with TS Rail System 
(Type 1-1100-AR) provided by French Creek Production, 
work includes removal, haul off and disposal per most 
recent federal, state, local regulations and contract 
documents, complete in place

Install new concrete swale for the new proposed 
Overflow Pipe per contract documents, complete in place

Removal and installation of 16-inch ductile iron pipe 
including the all fittings, trench safety, embedment, vault 
coring, vault support, butterfly valve, actuator, PVC pipe, 
gate valve, restrained joint fitting, tank support on wall 
and roof, penetration into the tank on the roof and 
miscellaneous items per contract documents, complete in 
place

Removal and installation of 24-inch ductile pipe including 
the all fittings, butterfly valves (3), trench safety, 
embedment, connection to existing DI, link seal for 
penetration and connection to proposed 24-inch steel 
pipe inside Pump Station trench and miscellaneous items 
per contract documents, complete in place

Removal and installation of all the Steel piping and fitting 
including the butterfly valves (9), flexible fitting, check 
valve, restraining coupling, reducer and miscellaneous 
items inside the Pump Station and connection into 
existing 24-inch at the trench base out of the Pump 
Station per contract documents, complete in place



12/01/2017 Page 2 of 2

BID TABULATION REPORT

Felix Construction Company Joe Funk Contruction, Inc. 

BID OPENED : 11/3/2017

Rehabilitation of the 2.0 Surveyor GST  and Pipeline 
Imrpvoments Bid No 18-03

14 1 LS  $8,810.00  $8,810.00  $12,000.00  $12,000.00 

15 1 LS  $146,826.00  $146,826.00  $160,000.00  $160,000.00 

16 1 LS  $25,597.00  $25,597.00  $58,000.00  $58,000.00 

17 1 LS  $8,481.00  $8,481.00  $30,000.00  $30,000.00 

18 1 LS  $20,256.00  $20,256.00  $15,000.00  $15,000.00 

19 3 EA  $881.00  $2,643.00  $300.00  $900.00 

20 1 LS  $24,784.00  $24,784.00  $30,000.00  $30,000.00 

21 1 LS  $346,656.00  $346,656.00  $398,000.00  $398,000.00 

22 1 LS  $449,536.00  $449,536.00  $450,000.00  $450,000.00 

23 1 EA  $58,460.00  $58,460.00  $58,460.00  $58,460.00 

24 1 LS  $75,000.00  $75,000.00  $7,500.00  $7,500.00 

TOTAL BASE BID AMOUNT      $2,425,311.00  $3,149,535.00 

A-1 675 LF  $128.00  $86,400.00  $63.00  $42,525.00 

TOTAL ALT BID AMOUNT  PLUS BASE BID    $2,511,711.00  $3,192,060.00 

Install one new 2-inch sample tap on the exterior 
concrete wall per contract documents, complete in place

Installation of new 12-inch 304 SS overflow pipe on the 
interior of the Surveyor GST including the welding, 
support, new penetration pad, fitting, flap valve and 
miscellaneous items per contract documents, complete in 
place

Installation of new sidewalk around the perimeter of the 
Surveyor GST per contract documents, complete in place

Surveyor GST Site re-vegetation by hydro-mulch 
seeding, and earthwork per contract documents, 
complete in place

Surveyor GST Site Grading for per contract documents, 
complete in place

Install Confined Space & Caution Signs, complete in 
place 

Remove of the existing safety cage on interior and 
exterior, install of new ladder guard on exterior, work 
includes removal, haul off and disposal per most recent 
federal, state, local regulations and contract documents, 
complete in place

Electrical and instrumentation work including exterior 
lighting, wiring, conduits and LED fixtures of the project 
per contract documents, complete in place

Electrical and structural improvements work including the 
wiring, concrete slab, bollards, electrical generator 
installation, grating, railing, stairs and miscellaneous 
improvements per contractor documents, complete in 
place

Provide electric and instrumentation improvements as 
per the attached Prime Control’s proposal (Q1757001-9) 
for electrical improvements; complete in place

Construction Contingency Allowance as directed by the 
Owner, approval in writing is required prior to starting the 
work, complete in place

Removal of existing chain link fence and install the new 
wrought iron fence per contract documents including the 
gate, opening and miscellaneous improvements 
complete in place





   
AI-2511     9.             
Work Session and Regular Meeting
Meeting Date: 12/12/2017  
Department: Infrastructure- Development Services
Pillars: Excellence in Transportation Systems

Optimize the Addison Brand
Milestones: Develop a Cotton Belt Strategy

Maximize use of cutting edge technology to enhance public safety

AGENDA CAPTION:
Consider Action to Approve a Resolution Endorsing the Design of the Aerial Rail
Crossing of Midway Road as Part of the Cotton Belt Regional Rail Project.

BACKGROUND:
As part of the Cotton Belt Regional Rail Project, Dallas Area Rapid Transit (DART)
conducted a traffic analysis of the existing at-grade rail crossing of Midway Road, just
north of the Wheeler Bridge. The analysis determined that the operation of regional rail
service would negatively impact the traffic conditions on Midway Road and that an aerial
crossing was warranted to mitigate this impact.

While necessary, due to its adjacency to the Wheeler Bridge, a standard aerial crossing
would create a negative visual impact to the views of the Wheeler bridge when traveling
south on Midway Road. In the Work Session on November 28, 2017, staff presented the
City Council with renderings that DART has developed showing how the visual impact
can be mitigated. The renderings show a structure mimicking the design of the Wheeler
Bridge with a blue arch, triangular foundation with spires, and faux suspension cables.
While the load of the new bridge demands additional support structures, the Council
indicated a desire that the area under the new bridge and the approaches to the
new bridge be kept as open as possible. Renderings of this design are included as
Exhibit A in the attached resolution.

Based on Council's input, staff has drafted the attached resolution to formally record the
Town's position on the need for and design of the proposed aerial crossing.

RECOMMENDATION:
Administration recommends approval.

Attachments
Resolution - Endorsement for Design for Aerial Crossing of the Cotton Belt Line at
Midway Road



OFFICE OF THE CITY SECRETARY   RESOLUTION NO. _____ 

Page 1 

TOWN OF ADDISON, TEXAS 

 

RESOLUTION NO. ______ 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF ADDISON, 

TEXAS URGING DART TO CONSTRUCT AN AERIAL CROSSING OF THE 

COTTON BELT REGIONAL RAIL LINE AT MIDWAY ROAD IN ADDISON AND 

TO DESIGN THE AERIAL CROSSING TO COMPLIMENT AND MIMIC THE 

DESIGN OF ADDISON’S WHEELER BRIDGE AND PROVIDING AN 

EFFECTIVE DATE.  

 

WHEREAS, DART has approved funding of the Cotton Belt regional rail line and is now 

engaged in the design of the line from DFW Airport to Plano; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the Town of Addison values the opportunity to participate in the design 

discussions for the Cotton Belt; and  

 

 WHEREAS, the Town agrees with DART that an at-grade crossing at Midway Road will 

have significant negative impacts on the traffic flow on Midway Road warranting an aerial 

crossing at that location; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the Town agrees with DART staff that an aerial crossing will have a negative 

visual impact on the Wheeler Bridge designed and constructed by the Town; and 

 

WHEREAS, visual mitigation is necessary to preserve the positive cultural contribution 

of the Wheeler Bridge; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the Town believes that the DART aerial crossing must be carefully designed 

to complement and mimic the design aesthetic of the Wheeler Bridge, including an arched structure 

with faux suspension cables; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the Town desires to minimize the vertical structural elements in and adjacent 

to the roadway to complement the intentional design of the Wheeler Bridge to span the entire right-

of-way. 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

TOWN OF ADDISON, TEXAS: 

 

 Section 1.  The recitals set forth above are true and correct and are incorporated as if fully 

set forth herein. 

 

Section 2.  The Town desires that DART proceed with design of an aerial crossing of the 

Cotton Belt line at Midway Road and that the crossing be designed at a minimum based on the 

conceptual image attached as Exhibit A, hereto and incorporated herein. 

 

 Section 3.  This resolution shall be effective from and after the date of passage. 

 



OFFICE OF THE CITY SECRETARY   RESOLUTION NO. _____ 

Page 2 

 DULY PASSED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF ADDISON, TEXAS, 

this the 12th day of December, 2017. 

 

 

              

       Joe Chow, Mayor 

 

ATTEST:     

  

 

      

Christie Wilson, Interim City Secretary 

     

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 

 

____________________________________ 

Brenda N. McDonald, City Attorney 
 



EXHIBIT A 

OFFICE OF THE CITY SECRETARY   RESOLUTION NO. _____ 

Exhibit A 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



   
AI-2505     10.             
Work Session and Regular Meeting
Meeting Date: 12/12/2017  
Department: Infrastructure- Development Services

AGENDA CAPTION:
Hold a Public Hearing, Discuss, and Consider Action on an Ordinance to Approve
the Development Plan for the Development of the Elan Addison Grove
Project Including a Site Plan, Landscape Plan, Utility and Drainage Plan,
Building Elevations and Floor Plans for 321 Multifamily Units, Including
Amenities, as well as Ground Floor Retail Space, in an Existing Planned
Development District (PD O16-003) Located on Approximately 4.194 Acres,
Addressed at 4150 Belt Line Road. Case 1767-Z/Elan Addison Grove.

BACKGROUND:
COMMISSION FINDINGS:

The Addison Planning and Zoning Commission, meeting in regular session on
November 21, 2017, voted to recommend approval of development plans for the Elan
Addison Grove project including a site plan, landscape plan, utility and drainage plan,
building elevations and floor plans for 321 multifamily units, including amenities, as well
as ground floor retail space, in an existing Planned Development district (PD O16-003)
located on approximately 4.194 acres, addressed at 4150 Belt Line Road, subject to no
conditions.
 
Voting Aye:  Griggs, Groce, Meleky, Schaeffer, Wheeler
Voting Nay:  none
Absent:        Robinson, Morgan
 
SPEAKERS AT THE PUBLIC HEARING:
For:         none
On:         none
Against:   Liz Oliphant, 14700 Marsh Lane #313

Please refer to the attached staff report for additional information on this case.

RECOMMENDATION:
Administration recommends approval.

Attachments
Ordinance - 1767-Z Elan Addison Grove Development Plan Approval
Staff Report - 1767-Z



Plans - 1767-Z



Case No. 1767-Z/ Elan Addison Grove 

Ordinance No. ___________ 

 

 

TOWN OF ADDISON, TEXAS 

 

ORDINANCE NO. _________ 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN OF ADDISON, TEXAS, PROVIDING FOR 

APPROVAL OF A DEVELOPMENT PLAN FOR A MULTIFAMILY DEVELOPMENT 

IN A PLANNED DEVELOPMENT ZONING DISTRICT (016-003) LOCATED ON 17.4 

ACRES LOACTED 4150 BELT LINE ROAD; PROVIDING A SAVINGS CLAUSE; 

PROVIDING A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; PROVIDING FOR A PENALTY OF A FINE 

NOT TO EXCEED THE SUM OF TWO THOUSAND DOLLARS ($2,000) FOR EACH 

OFFENSE; PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

WHEREAS, the Town of Addison, Texas (the “City”) is a home rule municipality having 

full power of local self-government pursuant to Article 11, Section 5 of the Texas Constitution and 

its Home Rule Charter; and 

 

WHEREAS, the area generally known as Addison Grove was zoned PD, Planned 

Development, with development standards and a concept plan governing the entire property 

through Ordinance O16-003; and   

 

WHEREAS, the PD requires development plan approval prior to the issuance of a building 

permit; and 

 

WHEREAS, after due deliberations and consideration of the recommendation of the 

Planning and Zoning Commission, the information received at the public hearing, and other 

relevant information and materials, the City Council of the Town of Addison, Texas finds that this 

ordinance promotes the general welfare and safety of this community.  

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

TOWN OF ADDISON, TEXAS THAT: 

 

 Section 1.  That the recitals and findings set forth above are hereby found to be true and 

correct and incorporated as if fully set forth herein. 

 

 Section 2. The property shall be improved in accordance with the development plans which 

are attached hereto as Exhibit A and made hereof for all purposes. 

 
 Section 3.  That any person, firm, or corporation violating any of the provisions or terms 

of this ordinance shall be subject to the same penalty as provided for in the Comprehensive Zoning 

Ordinance of the city, as heretofore amended, and upon conviction shall be punished by a fine set 

in accordance with Chapter 1, General Provisions, Section 1.10, General penalty for violations of 

Code; continuing violations, of the Code of Ordinances for the Town of Addison. 

 

 Section 4.  The provisions of this Ordinance are severable, and should any section, 

subsection, paragraph, sentence,  phrase or word of this Ordinance, or application thereof to any 

person, firm, corporation or other business entity or any circumstance, be adjudged or held to be 



Case No. 1767-Z/ Elan Addison Grove 

Ordinance No. ___________ 

unconstitutional, illegal or invalid, the same shall not affect the validity of the remaining or other 

parts or portions of this Ordinance, and the City Council hereby declares that it would have passed 

such remaining parts or portions of this Ordinance despite such unconstitutionality, illegality, or 

invalidity, which remaining portions shall remain in full force and effect. 

 

 Section 5.  That all ordinances of the City in conflict with the provisions of this ordinance 

be, and the same are hereby repealed and all other ordinances of the City not in conflict with the 

provisions of this ordinance shall remain in full force and effect. 

 

 Section 6.  That this Ordinance shall become effective from and after its passage and 

approval and after publication as may be required by law or by the City Charter or ordinance. 

 

 PASSED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF ADDISON, 

TEXAS, on this the 12th  day of December, 2017. 

 

 

                                                             ______________________________ 

                                                             Joe Chow, Mayor  

ATTEST: 

 

 

____________________________ 

Christie Wilson, Interim City Secretary 

 

CASE NO:  1767-Z/Elan Addison Grove 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 

 

________________________________ 

Brenda N. McDonald, City Attorney 

 

 

  

PUBLISHED ON: _______________________ 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Case No. 1767-Z/ Elan Addison Grove 

Ordinance No. ___________ 

 

EXHIBIT A: DEVELOPMENT PLANS 

 

  



Case No. 1767-Z/ Elan Addison Grove 

Ordinance No. ___________ 

 

EXHIBIT A: DEVELOPMENT PLANS 

 

  



Case No. 1767-Z/ Elan Addison Grove 

Ordinance No. ___________ 

 

EXHIBIT A: DEVELOPMENT PLANS 

 

  



Case No. 1767-Z/ Elan Addison Grove 

Ordinance No. ___________ 

 

EXHIBIT A: DEVELOPMENT PLANS 

 

  



Case No. 1767-Z/ Elan Addison Grove 

Ordinance No. ___________ 

 

EXHIBIT A: DEVELOPMENT PLANS 

 

  



Case No. 1767-Z/ Elan Addison Grove 

Ordinance No. ___________ 

 

EXHIBIT A: DEVELOPMENT PLANS 

 

  



Case No. 1767-Z/ Elan Addison Grove 

Ordinance No. ___________ 

 

EXHIBIT A: DEVELOPMENT PLANS 

 

  



Case No. 1767-Z/ Elan Addison Grove 

Ordinance No. ___________ 

 

EXHIBIT A: DEVELOPMENT PLANS 

 

  



Case No. 1767-Z/ Elan Addison Grove 

Ordinance No. ___________ 

 

EXHIBIT A: DEVELOPMENT PLANS 

 

  



Case No. 1767-Z/ Elan Addison Grove 

Ordinance No. ___________ 

 

EXHIBIT A: DEVELOPMENT PLANS 

 

  



Case No. 1767-Z/ Elan Addison Grove 

Ordinance No. ___________ 

 

EXHIBIT A: DEVELOPMENT PLANS 

 

  



Case No. 1767-Z/ Elan Addison Grove 

Ordinance No. ___________ 

 

EXHIBIT A: DEVELOPMENT PLANS 

 

  



Case No. 1767-Z/ Elan Addison Grove 

Ordinance No. ___________ 

 

EXHIBIT A: DEVELOPMENT PLANS 

 

  



Case No. 1767-Z/ Elan Addison Grove 

Ordinance No. ___________ 

 

EXHIBIT A: DEVELOPMENT PLANS 

 

  



Case No. 1767-Z/ Elan Addison Grove 

Ordinance No. ___________ 

 

EXHIBIT A: DEVELOPMENT PLANS 

 

 



1767-Z 

 

 

Case 1767-Z/Elan Addison Grove. Public hearing, discussion, and take action on a 
recommendation regarding a development plan for the development of the Elan Addison 
Grove project including a site plan, landscape plan, utility and drainage plan, building 
elevations and floor plans for 321 multifamily units, including amenities, as well as ground 
floor retail space, in an existing Planned Development district (PD O16-003) located on 
approximately 4.194 acres, addressed at 4150 Belt Line Road. 

LOCATION MAP 

 



 

 

 

 

November 16, 2017 

STAFF REPORT 

RE: Case 1767-Z/Elan Addison Groves 

LOCATION:  Approximately 4.194 acres of land located at 4150 
Belt Line Road 

REQUEST: Development Plan Approval in accordance with 
development standards for Planned Development 
O16-003. 

 
APPLICANT:  Greystar Real Estate Partners, LLC. represented 

by Andrew Ord 

DISCUSSION:  

Background: The property located at 4150 Belt Line Road consists of two lots totaling approximately 
17.4 acres. In 1991, this property was zoned as a Planned Development through ordinance O91-066 
to accommodate the development of a Sam’s Wholesale Club, which was constructed the following 
year. In anticipation of Sam’s departure in 2015, a special area study was conducted, which resulted in 
the adoption of a new Planned Development in January of 2016. This new Planned Development, PD 
O16-003, established standards for a new primarily residential, mixed-use development with 
townhomes, live/work units, multifamily, and ground floor retail. 

Since the zoning was approved in January 2016, InTown Homes received a Development Plan 
Approval in May 2016 and has continued to work with staff to work out remaining details to enable 
construction work to begin on the 57 townhome units in Block B. In accordance with the adopted 
Planned Development, at least 25 of these units must be under construction prior to the issuance of a 
building permit for the multifamily component or the garage building.  

Greystar Real Estate Partners, LLC. Was selected by InTown Homes to develop 4.194-acre multifamily 
component on the site. In September of 2017, the City Council approved Greystar to be the multifamily 
developer. Following that approval, Greystar has been working with staff to draft the detailed plans 
required for development plan approval. This will allow them to start construction once InTown has at 
least 25 units under construction.  

Proposed Plan: The development plans include the site plan and landscape plan for the multifamily 
portion of the overall development as well as building elevations and floor plans for each type of unit. 
The site plan and landscape plan are in keeping with the concept plan approved as part of the zoning 
ordinance. The residential portions of the building are four stories and the parking garage is five stories, 



2 
 

 

all in accordance with the height requirements set forth in the adopted PD O16-003. The building has a 
traditional appearance with primarily brick and stone façades, with unique character at the street corners 
to reflect the landmark corner requirement. Units range in size from studios around 500 square feet to 
two bedroom units ranging from 1,127 to 1,409 square feet. 
 
Staff Review: Development Plan approval differs from a typical zoning case. While zoning is a legislative 
decision with wide latitude given during the consideration process, development plan approval is a 
ministerial function more like plat approval. The purpose of the development plan approval process is 
to review the proposal in the context of the existing zoning requirements for the site. If the proposal 
meets the requirements, then it must be approved. 
 
Uses: The applicant is proposing 321 multifamily units on Block E.  The proposed use meets the 
standards in the ordinance. 
 
Development Standards: Development standards regulate the setbacks, building heights, lot sizes, 
and square footages of certain uses. The development plan is in compliance with all development 
standards as detailed below. 

 
Street Build-to Line: The development standards require that at least 70% of the building be at the 
build-to line along Type A streets allowing for a five foot front yard. This has been met. 
 
Other Setbacks: There are no minimum side yard or rear yard requirements. There is a perimeter 
setback of 10 feet, which has been met. 
 
Building Height: The ordinance requires a minimum building height of two stories and a maximum 
height of 85 feet for the multifamily units. The multifamily component is four stories and the parking 
garage structure is five stories, the highest roofline measuring at approximately 66 feet in height. The 
parking structure does not exceed the highest roofline of the multi-family structure. 
 
Minimum area per dwelling unit: The development standards require that efficiency units be at least 
450 square feet, one-bedroom at least 600 square feet, two-bedrooms at least 850 square feet, and 
three-bedrooms at least 1,000 square feet. All of the proposed multi-family units either comply with or 
exceed this requirement.  
 
Maximum Lot Coverage: The development standards require a maximum lot coverage of 95%. This 
has been met. 
 
Landmark Buildings: The development standards require that buildings at the corners or end of streets 
must be landmark buildings with unique features. All four corners of this multifamily development are 
designated as landmark corners. The representative elevations provided reflect all four landmark 
corners to comply with the requirements through unique articulation and design elements.  

 
The proposed plans comply with all development standards in the ordinance.  



3 
 

 

Open Space: Open space is required with residential uses and is calculated to require two acres for 
every 1,000 residents up to 2,250 and then 1.5 acres per 1,000 residents above 2,250. The code 
assumes 1.5 persons per unit. When applied to the entire project, 1.52 acres are required. This 
requirement has been met through dedication of 1.5606 acres of public open space of the full 17.4-acre 
development site, through adopted PD O16-020. The proposed plans comply with the open space 
standards in the ordinance. 
 
Parking: The ordinance requires that parking be provided in accordance with one space per 100 square 
feet for restaurant, one space per 300 square feet for general retail and office/leasing, and one space 
per bedroom for the multifamily component. Based on the number of bedrooms and the square footages 
for retail and office/leasing, the proposed development requires 498 parking spaces. The proposed 
parking structure provides 488 parking spaces and 51 surface parking spaces. Additionally, the 
ordinance calls for bicycle parking, which has also been provided. The proposal meets the parking 
requirements in the ordinance. 
 
Exterior Appearance:  The ordinance requires that at least 80 percent of exterior walls fronting or 
visible from public streets or public open space must be of masonry construction. The representative 
building elevations show masonry counts exceeding 80% for all effected facades. The elevations show 
a mixture of brick, stone and stucco. The proposal meets the exterior appearance in the ordinance, 
further compliance will be assessed prior to the issuance of a building permit. 
 
Landscape: The landscaping regulations in the ordinance govern the street edge as well as private 
landscaping. The plan has been reviewed by the Parks Department and no issues were identified.  The 
proposal meets the standards for landscape in the ordinance. 
 
Screening of Mechanical Equipment: The ordinance requires that mechanical equipment as well as 
loading, service, and trash storage areas be screened from view of all public roadways. All mechanical 
equipment, as represented on the provided plans, is shown to be screened accordingly. The proposal 
meets the screening requirements in the ordinance. 
 
General Requirements: When the zoning was approved, several conditions were added and became 
part of the regulations for the development. They are as follow: 
 

Private Open Space: Courtyards shown on the Concept Plan will be designed and constructed with 
enhanced architectural and landscaping features, including such elements as water features, 
landscaping, and art features. The landscape plan provided for the site indicates that the private 
courtyards will include water features, pergolas, and landscaping. 
 
Multifamily Units: To ensure the quality of the multifamily units, the ordinance provides additional 
requirements:  

A. The entire multifamily building will be LEED certified.  
B. There will be no linoleum or Formica in the multifamily units.  
C. All units will be equipped with energy efficient appliances.  
D. Counter tops in all units must be granite, stone or better.  



4 
 

 

The proposal complies with all general requirements in the ordinance. Staff will continue to 
monitor the project through the construction phase to ensure that required interior materials 
and appliances are used. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: APPROVAL 
 
Staff has reviewed the development plans and found them to comply with all requirements of the 
approved zoning ordinance PD O16-003. Staff will continue to review construction documents to ensure 
compliance prior to the issuance of any building permits. Building permit approval is contingent on at 
least 25 townhomes starting construction.  
 
Staff recommends approval subject to no conditions. 
 

 



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Case 1767-Z/Elan Addison Grove 
 
November 21, 2017 
 
 
COMMISSION FINDINGS: 
 
The Addison Planning and Zoning Commission, meeting in regular session on November 
21, 2017, voted to recommend approval of development plans for the development of the 
Elan Addison Grove project including a site plan, landscape plan, utility and drainage 
plan, building elevations and floor plans for 321 multifamily units, including amenities, as 
well as ground floor retail space, in an existing Planned Development district (PD O16-
003) located on approximately 4.194 acres, addressed at 4150 Belt Line Road, subject 
to no conditions. 
 
Voting Aye:  Griggs, Groce, Meleky, Schaeffer, Wheeler 
Voting Nay:  none 
Absent:        Robinson, Morgan 
 
 
SPEAKERS AT THE PUBLIC HEARING: 
 
For:      none 
On:          none 
Against:   Liz Oliphant, 14700 Marsh Lane #313 





BEDROOM

10'-3" X 7'-7"

BATH

W.I.C.

K
I
T

C
H

E
N

/
D

I
N

I
N

G

1
5

'
-
2

"
 
X

 
8

'
-
2

"

LIVING ROOM

11'-8" X 10'-4"

BALCONY

BEDROOM

10'-3" X 7'-7"

BATH

W.I.C.

LIVING ROOM

11'-8" X 10'-4"

K
I
T

C
H

E
N

/
D

I
N

I
N

G

1
5

'
-
2

"
 
X

 
8

'
-
2

"

BEDROOM

12'-3" X 7'-7"

W.I.C.

LIVING ROOM

13'-8" X 10'-4"

K
I
T

C
H

E
N

/
D

I
N

I
N

G

1
5

'
-
2

"
 
X

 
8

'
-
2

"

BALCONY

W.I.C.

BATH

BEDROOM

11'-6" X 10'-1"

LIVING/DINING

13'-6" X 10'-7"

KITCHEN

11'-1" X 13'-1"

BALCONY

BATH

W.I.C.

BEDROOM

12'-10" X 10'-0"

BALCONY

K
I
T

C
H

E
N

/
D

I
N

I
N

G

1
5

'
-
6

"
 
X

 
1

0
'
-
4

"

LIVING ROOM

12'-8" X 10'-4"

A  R  C  H  I  T  E  C  T  U  R  E

L  A  N  D  P  L  A  N  N  I  N  G

A-02

4150 BELT LINE ROAD - ADDISON, TEXAS - GREYSTAR DEVELOPMENT INC

UNIT PLANS - ELAN ADDISON GROVES



BATH

W.I.C.

BEDROOM

10'-11" X 11'-4"

LIVING ROOM

14'-0" X 12'-0"

K
I
T

C
H

E
N

/
D

I
N

I
N

G

1
6

'
-
1

"
 
X

 
1

1
'
-
1

0
"

BALCONY

LIVING/DINING

18'-0" X 12'-1"

KITCHEN

9'-0" X 14'-11"

W.I.C.

BATH

BEDROOM

13'-10" X 12'-1"

BALCONY

BATH

W.I.C.

BEDROOM

12'-7" X 11'-1"

LIVING/DINING

15'-4" X 13'-1"

KITCHEN

12'-4" X 12'-11"

BALCONY

W.I.C.

BATH

BEDROOM

12'-0" X 11'-0"

BALCONY

LIVING/DINING

18'-6" X 12'-0"

KITCHEN

14'-8" X 12'-0"

A  R  C  H  I  T  E  C  T  U  R  E

L  A  N  D  P  L  A  N  N  I  N  G

A-03

4150 BELT LINE ROAD - ADDISON, TEXAS - GREYSTAR DEVELOPMENT INC

UNIT PLANS - ELAN ADDISON GROVES



BATH

PDR

W.I.C.

BEDROOM

12'-8" X 11'-6"

KITCHEN

13'-9" X 13'-3"

LIVING/DINING

23'-4" X 11'-10"

BALCONY

LIVING/DINING

20'-8" X 12'-5"

KITCHEN

13'-3" X 12'-7"

DEN

8'-5" X 7'-7"

BEDROOM

12'-0" X 10'-11"

W.I.C.

BATH

BALCONY

PDR

KITCHEN

14'-10" X 9'-5"

UTILITY

PDR

BEDROOM

12'-0" X 13'-0"

W.I.C.

LIVING/DINING

23'-2" X 13'-0"

BALCONY

DEN

9-7" X 9'-6"

BATH

LIVING/DINING

21'-10" X 13'-0"

KITCHEN

15'-0" X 9'-2"

BEDROOM

11'-1" X 12'-6"

W.I.C.

UTILITY

BATH

PDR

BALCONY

A  R  C  H  I  T  E  C  T  U  R  E

L  A  N  D  P  L  A  N  N  I  N  G

A-04

4150 BELT LINE ROAD - ADDISON, TEXAS - GREYSTAR DEVELOPMENT INC

UNIT PLANS - ELAN ADDISON GROVES



DINING

10'-6" X 11'-2"

KITCHEN

14'-6" X 10'-1"

LIVING ROOM

14'-4" X 12'-10"

BALCONY

W.I.C.

W.I.C.

BATH
BATH

UTIL.

BEDROOM 2

12'-8" X 11'-0"

MASTER

BEDROOM

13'-11" X 11'-0"

BALCONY

W.I.C.

W.I.C.

BATH

BATH

UTIL.

KITCHEN

9'-5" X 19'-6"

LIVING/DINING

13'-0" X 23'-0"

MASTER

BEDROOM

13'-1" X 12'-6"

BEDROOM 2

13'-0" X 11'-6"

A  R  C  H  I  T  E  C  T  U  R  E

L  A  N  D  P  L  A  N  N  I  N  G

A-05

4150 BELT LINE ROAD - ADDISON, TEXAS - GREYSTAR DEVELOPMENT INC

UNIT PLANS - ELAN ADDISON GROVES



BALCONY

W.I.C.

BATH

KITCHEN

9'-7" X 14'-11"

LIVING/DINING

20'-2" X 14'-11"

MASTER

BEDROOM

11'-3" X 14'-7"

BEDROOM 2

12'-8" X 11'-4"

BALCONY

W.I.C.

W.I.C.

BATH

BATH

UTIL.

KITCHEN

9'-3" X 16'-1"

LIVING/DINING

13'-1" X 21'-10"

MASTER

BEDROOM

12'-3" X 12'-1"

BEDROOM 2

12'-7" X 11'-1"

BALCONY

W.I.C.

W.I.C.

BATH

BATH

UTIL.

DEN

9'-6" X 9'-8"

PDR

KITCHEN

9'-5" X 19'-11"

LIVING/DINING

13'-0" X 23'-3"

MASTER

BEDROOM

13'-1" X 13'-0"

BEDROOM 2

13'-0" X 12'-0"

A  R  C  H  I  T  E  C  T  U  R  E

L  A  N  D  P  L  A  N  N  I  N  G

A-06

4150 BELT LINE ROAD - ADDISON, TEXAS - GREYSTAR DEVELOPMENT INC

UNIT PLANS - ELAN ADDISON GROVES





5 5

10 6

T

8 8

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

4 3

3

T

T

5

TT

T

3T

T

T T

T

3T

T

TTTT

TT

T

TT

A  R  C  H  I  T  E  C  T  U  R  E

L  A  N  D  P  L  A  N  N  I  N  G

A-08

4150 BELT LINE ROAD - ADDISON, TEXAS - GREYSTAR DEVELOPMENT INC

BUILDING PLANS - ELAN ADDISON GROVES



A  R  C  H  I  T  E  C  T  U  R  E

L  A  N  D  P  L  A  N  N  I  N  G

A-09

4150 BELT LINE ROAD - ADDISON, TEXAS - GREYSTAR DEVELOPMENT INC

EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS - ELAN ADDISON GROVES















5 5

10 6

T

8 8

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

4 3

3

T

T

5

TT

T

3T

T

T T

T

3T

RETAIL PARKING

LVL 1.0

+0.0'

RESIDENTIAL PARKING

LVL 1.25

+4.5'

PUMP

RM

TRASH

LEASING/CLUB

RETAIL

EXTERIOR

COVERED

PATIO

COURTYARD 1

COURTYARD 2

COURTYARD 3

RETAIL PARKING

LVL 1.0

+0.0'

RESIDENTIAL PARKING

LVL 1.25

+4.5'

PUMP

RM

TRASH

LEASING/CLUB

RETAIL

EXTERIOR

COVERED

PATIO

COURTYARD 1

COURTYARD 2

COURTYARD 3

EX   8" WATER

8
"
W

8
"
W

8
"
W

8
"
W

8
"
W

8
"
W

8
"
W

8"W

8"W

8"W 8"W

8"W

8"W

8"W

8"W

8"W

8"W

8"W

8"W

24"W
24"W

24"W
24"W

24"W
24"W

24"W
24"W

24"W
24"W

24"W
24"W

EX   24" WATER

EX   24" WATER

D

W

W

W
W

S

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

TR

EX   8" WATER

8
"
W

8
"
W

8
"
W

8
"
W

8
"
W

8
"
W

8
"
W

8"W

8"W

8"W 8"W

8"W

8"W

8"W

8"W

8"W

8"W

8"W

8"W

24"W
24"W

24"W
24"W

24"W
24"W

24"W
24"W

24"W
24"W

24"W
24"W

EX   24" WATER

EX   24" WATER

D

W

W

W
W

S

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

TR

PROPOSED UNDERGROUND

ELECTRIC LINE

PROP. 24" RCP

PROP. 6" SANITARY

SEWER AND

MANHOLE

PROP. 10' CI

PROP. 12" PVC

(TYP.)

PROP. 12" PVC

(TYP.)

PROP. 12" PVC

(TYP.)

PROP. 18" RCP

(TYP.)

PROP. 12" PVC

(TYP.)

PROP. 12" PVC

(TYP.)

ADDITIONAL AREA

DRAINS, 8" PVC, AND

6" PVC NEEDED FOR

PRIVATE STORM LINE

IN COURTYARDS

CONNECT TO EX. 8"

SANITARY SEWER

CONNECT

TO EX. 8"

SANITARY

SEWER

PROP. 6" WATER

(DOM.) WITH METER

PROP. 6"

WATER (FIRE)

WITH VAULT

PROP. 1" WATER

(IRR.) WITH METER

CONNECT TO EX. 6"

WATER FOR RETAIL

SERVICE (DOM.)

EX. 3/4" WATER

METER (IRR.)

PROP. 12" PVC

(TYP.)

FDC

PROPERTY LINE (TYP.)

PROP. FIRE

HYDRANT WITH

6" SERVICE

PROP. FIRE

HYDRANT WITH

6" SERVICE

PROPOSED PRIVATE

DRAINAGE EASEMENT

(BY PLAT)

EXISTING UTILITY

EASEMENT

PROPOSED PRIVATE

DRAINAGE EASEMENT

(BY PLAT)

D
A

T
E

A
S

 
S

H
O

W
N

SHEET NUMBER

C
H

E
C

K
E

D
 
B

Y

S
C

A
L
E

D
E

S
I
G

N
E

D
 
B

Y

D
R

A
W

N
 
B

Y

K
H

A
 
P

R
O

J
E

C
T

A
D

D
I
S

O
N

 
G

R
O

V
E

S

4
1

5
0

 
B

E
L

T
 
L
I
N

E
 
R

D
.
,
 
A

D
D

I
S

O
N

,
 
T

X
 
7
5

0
0
1

1
3
4
5
5
 
N

O
E

L
 
R

O
A

D
,
 
T

W
O

 
G

A
L
L
E

R
I
A

 
O

F
F

I
C

E
 
T

O
W

E
R

S
U

I
T

E
 
7
0
0
,
 
D

A
L
L
A

S
,
 
T

E
X

A
S

 
7
5
2
4
0

P
H

O
N

E
:
 
9
7
2
-
7
7

0
-
1
3
0
0
 
 
F

A
X

:
 
9
7
2
-
2
3
9
-
3
8
2

0

W
W

W
.
K

I
M

L
E

Y
-
H

O
R

N
.
C

O
M

 
 
T

X
 
F

-
9
2
8

©
 
2
0
1
7
 
K

I
M

L
E

Y
-
H

O
R

N
 
A

N
D

 
A

S
S

O
C

I
A

T
E

S
,
 
I
N

C
.

FOR REVIEW ONLY

Engineer

P.E. No. Date

DAVID. E MEYERS

81512

A
P

P
L

I
C

A
N

T
:

M
E

E
K

S
 
+

 
P

A
R

T
N

E
R

S

1
6

0
0

0
 
M

E
M

O
R

I
A

L
 
D

R
.
,
 
S

U
I
T

E
 
1

0
0

H
O

U
S

T
O

N
,
 
T

X
 
7

7
0

7
9

(
2

8
1

)
 
5

5
8

-
8

7
8

7

O
W

N
E

R
:

G
R

E
Y

S
T

A
R

6
0

0
 
E

.
 
L

A
S

 
C

O
L

I
N

A
S

 
B

L
V

D
.
,
 
S

U
I
T

E
 
2

1
0

0

D
A

L
L

A
S

,
 
T

X
 
7

5
0

3
9

(
4

6
9

)
 
3

7
1

-
3

1
7

6

D
E

M

J
K

L

D
E

M

1
1

/
0

8
/
2

0
1

7

0
6

7
7

7
1

6
4

6

P
R

E
L
I
M

I
N

A
R

Y
 
U

T
I
L
I
T

Y

A
N

D
 
D

R
A

I
N

A
G

E
 
P

L
A

N

UD-1

NORTH

PROPERTY LINE

PROPOSED BUILDING

LEGEND

PROPOSED SANITARY SEWER

SS

PROPOSED STORM SEWER

SS

W

EXISTING SANITARY SEWER

EXISTING WATER

EXISTING STORM SEWER

PROPOSED ELECTRIC

W PROPOSED WATER



   
AI-2506     11.             
Work Session and Regular Meeting
Meeting Date: 12/12/2017  
Department: Infrastructure- Development Services

AGENDA CAPTION:
Hold a Public Hearing, Discuss, and Consider Action on an Ordinance to Approve
Changing the Zoning on Property Located at 15003 Inwood Road, Which the
Property is Currently Zoned C-1, To a PD, Planned Development District,
Allowing all C-1 Uses, plus Manufacturing and Assembly Uses, and
Establishing Modified Development Standards. PUBLIC HEARING Case
1766-Z/Fish Gallery

BACKGROUND:
COMMISSION FINDINGS:

The Addison Planning and Zoning Commission, meeting in regular session on
November 21, 2017, voted to recommend approval of an ordinance rezoning the
property located at 15003 Inwood Road, from Commercial-1 (C-1) to Planned
Development (PD) to allow all C-1 uses, plus manufacturing and assembly uses, and
establish modified development standards, subject to the following condition: 

The applicant shall increase the glazing on the building elevations fronting the
street

Voting Aye:  Griggs, Groce, Meleky, Schaeffer, Wheeler
Voting Nay:  none
Absent:        Robinson, Morgan
 
SPEAKERS AT THE PUBLIC HEARING: none

Please refer to the attached staff report for additional information on this case. The plans
attached to this item show a future street along the southern portion of this property. The
staff report notes that the applicant offered to donate the land necessary for the street as
a means of contributing to the east/west road envisioned in the Inwood Road Special
Area Study and subsequent Comprehensive Plan amendment. After further discussions
with the applicant following the Planning and Zoning Commission meeting, there
appears to have been a misunderstanding regarding this dedication. While the applicant
is amenable to a road through the property, the applicant is not donating the land and
expects to be compensated by the Town. 

RECOMMENDATION:
The purpose of the Comprehensive Plan is to serve as official policy of the Town and



The purpose of the Comprehensive Plan is to serve as official policy of the Town and
guide future zoning decisions. As noted in the staff report, the Comprehensive Plan
indicates that this property should be used for commercial, retail, restaurant, or hotel
uses. The proposed plan for this property includes aquarium manufacturing and parts
assembly. These are considered industrial uses. Since the proposed uses do not
conform with the vision established in the Comprehensive Plan, administration
recommends denial.
 
Furthermore, in staff’s original assessment of this case, staff believed that the applicant
intended to donate property for the future construction of an east/west connector street
that would eventually extend to Beltway Road. While the proposed uses do not comply
with the Comprehensive Plan, the proposed dedication would have advanced another
important goal for the area to increase east/west connectivity. Without this dedication,
staff believes that this request is even further out of alignment with the Comprehensive
Plan and would not be appropriate.

Attachments
Ordinance - 1766-Z Fish Gallery
Staff Report - 1766-Z
Plans - 1766-Z 



Case No. 1766-Z/Fish Gallery 

Ordinance No. ___________ 

TOWN OF ADDISON, TEXAS 

 

ORDINANCE NO. ________ 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN OF ADDISON, TEXAS, CREATING PLANNED 

DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT ________ BASED ON COMMERCIAL-1 (C-1) DISTRICT 

REGULATIONS WITH MODIFIED DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS LOCATED AT  15003 

INWOOD ROAD, ON APPLICATION FROM FISH GALLERY, PROVIDING FOR 

APPROVAL OF ALL C-1 USES PLUS MANUFACTURING AND ASSEMBLY; PROVIDING 

A SAVINGS CLAUSE; PROVIDING A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; PROVIDING FOR A 

PENALTY OF A FINE NOT TO EXCEED THE SUM OF TWO THOUSAND DOLLARS 

($2,000) FOR EACH OFFENSE; PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

WHEREAS, the Town of Addison, Texas (the “City”) is a home rule municipality having full 

power of local self-government pursuant to Article 11, Section 5 of the Texas Constitution and its 

Home Rule Charter; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Town of Addison adopted Ordinance No. O17-11 which amended the Town 

of Addison Comprehensive Plan to add a new section adopting the findings of the Inwood Road 

Corridor Special Area Study (the “Inwood Road Study”); and 

 

WHEREAS, a cornerstone of the findings of the Inwood Road Study was the need to increase 

and develop east/west connector roads from Inwood Road to adjacent roadways; and 

 

WHEREAS, the applicant for the zoning amendment granted herein has offered to dedicate 

right-of-way for an east/west connector road in conjunction with development of the property; and 

 

WHEREAS, but for the dedication of the right-of-way described above, the requested zoning 

amendment would not conform to the findings of the Inwood Road Study; and  

 

WHEREAS, after due deliberations and consideration of the recommendation of the Planning 

and Zoning Commission, the information received at the public hearing, and other relevant 

information and materials, the City Council of the Town of Addison, Texas finds that this ordinance 

promotes the general welfare and safety of this community.  

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE TOWN 

OF ADDISON, TEXAS THAT: 

 

Section 1.  The recitals and findings set forth above are hereby found to be true and correct and 

incorporated as if fully set forth herein. 

 

Section 2.   Planned Development District ______ is hereby established for the 1.506 acres of land 

located at 15003 Inwood Road and more specifically described in Exhibit A attached hereto and 

incorporated herein (the “Property”), in accordance with all Commercial-1 (C-1), district development 

regulations contained in the Town of Addison, Code of Ordinances, as amended, with the following 

special conditions: 



Case No. 1766-Z/Fish Gallery 

Ordinance No. ___________ 

 

A. Use Regulations. No land shall be used and no building shall be erected for or converted 

to any use other than all uses allowed in a C-1 district, plus manufacturing and assembly 

uses. 

 

B. Type of Construction. At least 80 percent of the exterior walls of all structures shall be of 

masonry construction, exclusive of door and window openings. At least 80 percent of all 

facades visible from a public street must be of brick or stone construction. Glass tile, glass 

block, and plate glass may count as masonry. The use of Nichiha fiber-cement architectural 

wall panels shall be allowed for the remaining 20 percent of the facades. 

 

C. Building Façade. The applicant shall increase the glazing on the building elevations 

fronting the street. 

 

Section 3.  The property shall be improved in accordance with the site plan, floor plan, landscape 

plans, and building elevations attached hereto as Exhibit B and made hereof for all purposes. 

 

Section 4.  Based on the Inwood Road Study, for the grant of entitlements in this Ordinance to be in 

the best interest of the public health, safety and welfare, prior to the issuance of a building permit to 

construct the improvements contemplated herein, the right-of-way for the New Road shown on 

Exhibit B shall be dedicated, in fee simple, to the Town of Addison. 

 

Section 5. Any person, firm, or corporation violating any of the provisions or terms of this ordinance 

shall be subject to the same penalty as provided for in the Comprehensive Zoning Ordinance of the 

city, as heretofore amended, and upon conviction shall be punished by a fine set in accordance with 

Chapter 1, General Provisions, Section 1.10, General penalty for violations of Code; continuing 

violations, of the Code of Ordinances for the Town of Addison. 

 

Section 6.  The provisions of this Ordinance are severable, and should any section, subsection, 

paragraph, sentence,  phrase or word of this Ordinance, or application thereof to any person, firm, 

corporation or other business entity or any circumstance, be adjudged or held to be unconstitutional, 

illegal or invalid, the same shall not affect the validity of the remaining or other parts or portions of 

this Ordinance, and the City Council hereby declares that it would have passed such remaining parts 

or portions of this Ordinance despite such unconstitutionality, illegality, or invalidity, which remaining 

portions shall remain in full force and effect. 

 

Section 7.  All ordinances of the City in conflict with the provisions of this ordinance be, and the same 

are hereby repealed and all other ordinances of the City not in conflict with the provisions of this 

ordinance shall remain in full force and effect. 

 

Section 8.  This Ordinance shall become effective from and after its passage and approval and after 

publication as may be required by law or by the City Charter or ordinance. 

 

  



Case No. 1766-Z/Fish Gallery 

Ordinance No. ___________ 

PASSED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF ADDISON, TEXAS, 

on this the 12th day of December, 2017. 

 

 

                                                             ______________________________ 

                                                             Joe Chow, Mayor 

  

ATTEST: 

 

____________________________ 

Christie Wilson, Interim City Secretary 

 

CASE NO:   1766-Z/Fish Gallery 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 

________________________________ 

Brenda N. McDonald, City Attorney 

 

PUBLISHED ON:  

 

_______________________ 

 

 



Case No. 1766-Z/Fish Gallery 

Ordinance No. ___________ 

EXHIBIT A 

 

Being a 1.506 acre tract of land situated in the Josiah Pancoast Survey, Abstract No. 1146, and 

being a portion of Lot 1, Block 1, of the Rinehart Inwood Addition, an Addition to the Town of 

Addison, Dallas County, Texas, according to the plat thereof recorded in Volume 77012, Page 

1563, Map Records of Dallas County, Texas, and being all of Lot 1, Block 1, O'Dwyer Inwood 

Addition, an unrecorded plat, and being all of that certain tract of land to Joe C. Thompson, Jr., by 

deed recorded in Volume 87001, Page 3230, of the Deed Records of Dallas County, Texas, and 

being more particularly described by metes and bounds as follows:  

 

Beginning at a 1 /2 inch iron rod set with "Peiser & Mankin Surv'' red plastic cap (hereinafter 

referred to as 1 /2 inch iron rod set) for the northeast corner of the herein described tract, same 

being in the southwesterly right-of-way line of Inwood Road (a 100' right-of-way), same being the 

most easterly southeast corner of The Attic, an addition to the Town of Addison, Dallas County, 

Texas, according to the plat thereof recorded in Volume 77197, Page 1570, said Map Records;  

 

Thence South 17 deg. 15 min. 00 sec. East, along the southwest right-of-way line of said Inwood 

Road, passing the southeast corner of said Lot 1, Block 1, O'Dwyer Inwood Addition, same being 

the northeast corner of aforesaid Lot 1, Block 1, Rinehart Inwood Addition, and continuing a total 

distance of 295.63 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod set for the southeast corner of the herein described 

tract, same being North 17 deg. 15 min. 00 sec. West, 11.31 feet from the southeast corner of said 

Lot 1, Block 1, Rinehart Inwood Addition, same being the northeast corner of that certain tract of 

land to 14885 Inwood Road LLC, by deed recorded in Instrument Number 200600478170, Official 

Public Records, Dallas County, Texas, same being the northeast corner of that certain tract of land 

to Inwood North Partners, by deed dated March 24, 1983, as recorded in Volume 83063, Page 

3848, aforesaid Deed Records; 

 

Thence along the common line of said Thompson tract, and said 14885 Inwood Road tract as 

follows:  

 

South 90 deg. 00 min. 00 sec. West, a distance of 563.69 feet to an 'X' cut set in concrete for an 

angle point;  

 

South 37 deg. 11 min. 42 sec. West, a distance of 13.56 feet to an 'X' cut set in concrete for an 

angle point, same being in the south line of said Lot 1, Block 1, Rinehart Inwood Addition;  

 

South 90 deg. 00 min. 00 sec. West, a distance of 5.40 feet to an 'X' cut found in concrete for the 

southwest corner of the herein described tract, same being the southwest corner of said Lot 1, 

Block 1, Rinehart Inwood Addition, same being the northwest corner of said 14885 Inwood Road 

tract, same being in the east line of Lot 2, Inwood West Addition, an addition to the Town of 

Addison, Dallas County, Texas, according to the plat thereof recorded in Volume 91199, Page 

3395, aforesaid Deed Records;  

 

 

 



Case No. 1766-Z/Fish Gallery 

 

 

Ordinance No. ___________ 

 

EXHIBIT A 

 

Thence North 00 deg. 00 min. 00 sec. East, along the common line of said Thompson tract, said 

Lot 1, Block 1, Rinehart Inwood Addition, and said Lot 2, passing an 'X' cut found at a distance 

of 95.50 feet for the northwest corner of said Lot 1, Block 1, Rinehart Inwood Addition, same 

being the northeast corner of said Lot 2, same being the most southerly southeast corner of 

aforesaid The Attic, and continuing along the common line of said Thompson tract, and said The 

Attic, a total distance of 263.84 feet to an 'X' cut found in concrete for the most westerly northwest 

corner of said Thomson tract, same being an angle point in said The Attic;  

 

Thence North 45 deg. 00 min. 00 sec. East, a distance of 41.43 feet to a corner for the most 

northerly northwest corner of said Thompson tract;  

 

Thence North 90 deg. 00 min. 00 sec. East, continuing along the common line of said Thompson 

tract, and said The Attic, a distance of 160.32 feet to the Point of Beginning and containing 65,583 

square feet or 1.506 acres of computed land, more or less .



Case No. 1766-Z/Fish Gallery 

EXHIBIT B 

Ordinance No. ___________ 

 

  



Case No. 1766-Z/Fish Gallery 

EXHIBIT B 

Ordinance No. ___________ 

 

  



Case No. 1766-Z/Fish Gallery 

EXHIBIT B 

Ordinance No. ___________ 

 

  



Case No. 1766-Z/Fish Gallery 

EXHIBIT B 

Ordinance No. ___________ 

 

  



Case No. 1766-Z/Fish Gallery 

EXHIBIT B 

Ordinance No. ___________ 

 



1766-Z 

 

 

PUBLIC HEARING Case 1766-Z/Fish Gallery. Public hearing, discussion, and take 

action on a recommendation regarding an ordinance changing the zoning on property 

located at 15003 Inwood Rd., which property is currently zoned C-1, to a PD, Planned 

Development district, allowing all C-1 uses, plus manufacturing and assembly uses, and 

establishing modified development standards.  

LOCATION MAP 

 

 



 

 

 

 

November 16, 2017 

STAFF REPORT 

RE: Case 1766-Z/Fish Gallery 

LOCATION:      15003 Inwood Road 

REQUEST: Approval of an ordinance rezoning the 
property from C-1 (Commercial-1) to a PD 
(Planned Development), with modified 
development standards 

 
APPLICANT:  Roger Degregori 

DISCUSSION:  

Background: The property located at 15003 Inwood Road is currently a vacant one-story retail 
building of approximately 18,500 square feet, and was most recently occupied by Sigel’s liquor 
store. The site is bordered by another single-story retail center to the south and a self-storage 
facility, consisting of several single-story buildings, to the north and west.  
 
The site is zoned Comerrcial-1, C-1, which allows for a variety of retail/showroom and office 
uses, but does not allow manufacturing or parts assembly. 
 
The site was developed in 1983 and is required to abide by the zoning requirements in place 
at that time. The current landscaping regulations were approved in 2008, meaning that this site, 
as it is today, is exempted from these regulations. However, the regulations state that they 
become applicable at such time a property is rezoned, including to a Planned Development 
district.   
 
Proposed Use: Fish Gallery is proposing to purchase this building and use a third of the space 
into retail/showroom and office space totaling approximately 6,300 square feet. Most of the 
building, 12,200 square feet, would be converted to manufacturing and aquarium assembly 
space, inclusive of a large oven for molding glass, a welding room, an acrylic sanding and 
polishing room, a build room with finishing tables, and a separate space with a variety of 
machinery.  
 



 

Manufacturing and parts assembly uses are considered industrial type uses and are currently 
only allowed in the Town’s three Industrial districts.  Development standards in the Industrial 
district are typically lower than those in the Town’s other zoning districts and are not in keeping 
with the Town’s vision for this corridor. In working with the applicant, staff indicated that 
elevating the quality of development on this corridor was an important goal for the Town. 
Therefore, Fish Gallery is requesting to rezone the property to a Planned Development 
primarily to adjust the list of allowed uses to include manufacturing and parts assembly, as well 
as provide for modified standards. 
 
Proposed Plan: The application is proposing to repurpose the existing single-story building for 
the proposed uses. The exterior facades of the building would be upgraded to add masonry. 
The site would also see increases in the amount of landscaping as well as the construction of 
sidewalks. 
 
Additionally, the applicant has agreed to donate the southern portion of this property for street 
right-of-way to assist the Town’s vision of creating a street that would provide a connection 
between Beltway Drive and Inwood Road. 
 
Exterior Facades: The building is primarily constructed from concrete masonry units (CMU). 
The applicant is proposing to add brick over the CMU and a small percentage of Nichiha’s 
Illumination fiber cement panels, made to look like wood, which would be a first time use for 
this type of product within the Town of Addison. However, several surrounding cities, such as 
Richardson and Farmers Branch, have already allowed the use of this material as part of their 
masonry requirement and have a very favorable outlook on the quality of this product.    
 
Parking:  The parking requirements for this Planned Development would mirror the general 
requirements found in the Commercial-1 district and Industrial-1 district for manufacturing uses. 
The uses being proposed would be parked at a retail ratio requiring 1 space per 200 square 
feet and a manufacturing ratio requiring 1 space per 1,000 square feet. Based on 6,300 square 
feet of proposed retail space, 32 parking spaces would be required, and based on 12,200 
square feet of manufacturing space, 12 parking spaces would be required.  
 
Fire Access: The plans have been reviewed by the Fire Marshal to ensure sufficient site access 
and building coverage. Current requirements call for a 24-foot-wide fire lane. The submitted 
site plans show that such requirement will be met. 
 
Landscaping: In addition to the proposed Landscape Plan, the applicant has submitted an 
interim plan that will govern until the future street connection is made along the southern portion 
of this property. Both plans have been reviewed by the Parks Department to ensure compliance 
with the Town’s Landscape Ordinance. The Landscape Ordinance requires that properties be 



 

brought up to current standards when they are rezoned, which calls for 20 percent of the entire 
site to be landscaped, parking lot landscaping, and a 25-foot landscaping setback from the 
street. While not all requirements are met, staff believes that given the site constraints, as well 
as the applicant’s willingness to donate a portion on the property for street right-of-way, the 
provided landscape plans are adequate. 
 
Comprehensive Plan: In 2016, the Town completed the Inwood Road Enhancement Zone 
Study. The findings of this study were ultimately adopted in 2017 as a Comprehensive Plan 
amendment, identifying goals of promoting higher density, diverse, mixed-use redevelopment 
with focus on pedestrian safety, walkability, and connectivity especially through additional 
east/west connections. In addition to these goals, the Plan describes “character districts” that 
were intended to guide future zoning decisions on land use and development standards. 
 
This property falls within the Inwood District. According to the Plan, the permissible uses in the 
Inwood District include dining/retail, office, hotel or some mix of those uses. The Plan also calls 
for transitioning to multi-level buildings of 2-4 stories. 
 
Based on the recent Comprehensive Plan amendment, staff has concerns with the proposed 
density and use, which do not comply with the Town’s vision for this area. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: DENIAL 
 
While this business would be appropriate (and welcomed) in the Town’s industrial districts, the 
Comprehensive Plan is very clear regarding the Town’s vision for this area. This plan does 
advance elements of the Comprehensive Plan such as improving pedestrian connectivity and 
beginning to establish an alignment for a future street connection between Beltway Drive and 
Inwood Road. These elements, however, are not unique to this proposal and would likely be 
required of any future rezoning of this property. 
 
Due to the manufacturing/assembly component of this use, staff is recommending denial of this 
request. The Inwood character district was not intended to include industrial type uses such as 
manufacturing. Furthermore, the vision created in the Inwood Road Enhancement Zone was 
for larger scale, higher density development with a mix of uses. The proposed plan does not 
move this property towards that vision. 
 
Should the Commission desire to approve this project, staff would propose that, given the 
Town’s vision for a more activated streetscape, the applicant revise the façade to include more 
glazing along the retail/showroom space of this building. 



Land Use Analysis form  

Town of Addison Comprehensive Plan 

Land Use Analysis     

 

Attribute Comment  Score 

 

Competitive 

 

The proposed use would not enhance the long-term com-

petitiveness of this property. 

  

 Safe 
The property will provide sidewalks to allow for safer pe-

destrian travel. Additionally, the building will be required to 

upgrade their fire suppression system. 

  

 Functional 
Based on the proposed site, landscape, drainage, and 

utility plans the project appears to be functional. 

  

Visually           

Appealing 

While the facades meet the masonry requirements for the 

Town, the proposed design could be adjusted to provide 

additional visual appeal. 

  

Supported with 

Amenities 
The site is not surrounded by many amenities.  

  

Environmentally 

Responsible 

The plan meets the Town’s landscaping requirements, but 

does not include other sustainable elements. 

  

 Walkable 
The proposed site and landscape plans meet the Master 

Transportation Plan requirements, but is not well connect-

ed to additional other uses. 

  

 Overall            

Assessment  

The proposed development does not represent the 

highest and best use of this site and done not comply 

with the Comprehensive Plan. 

  

Attributes of Success Matrix 

Fish Gallery, 15003 Inwood Road 1766-Z 



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Case 1766-Z/Fish Gallery 
 
November 21, 2017 
 
 
COMMISSION FINDINGS: 
 
The Addison Planning and Zoning Commission, meeting in regular session on November 
21, 2017, voted to recommend approval of an ordinance rezoning the property located at 
15003 Inwood Rd, from Commercial-1 (C-1) to Planned Development (PD) to allow all C-
1 uses, plus manufacturing and assembly uses, and establish modified development 
standards, subject to the following condition: 
 

• The applicant shall increase the glazing on the building elevations fronting 
the street 

 
Voting Aye:  Griggs, Groce, Meleky, Schaeffer, Wheeler 
Voting Nay:  none 
Absent:        Robinson, Morgan 
 
 
SPEAKERS AT THE PUBLIC HEARING: 
 
For:      none 
On:          none 
Against:   none 



Sidewalk

S
id

ew
al

k
S

id
ew

al
k

Planter

P
la

nt
er

11

10

12

13

14

15

22

35
15’ 15’

9’ 9’

3432 3833

23

21

20

19

18

17

25’

25’

24’

16
9

8

7

6

1 2 3 4 5

Owner:
Joe C. Thompson Jr.
3322 Shorecrest Drive #235
Dallas, TX, 75235
214-707-6463

Applicant:
Roger DeGregori
2909 Fountain View Drive
Houston TX, 77057

Sidewalk

Si
de

w
al

k

Si
de

w
al

k

Sidewalk

SITE PLAN NOTES

1. �Any revision to this plan will require Town approval and will require revisions to 
any corresponding plans to avoid conflicts between plans.

2. �Open storage, where permitted, shall be screened in accordance with the zoning 
Ordinace. 

3. �Buildings with an aggregate sum of 5,000 square feet or greater on a lot shall have 
automatic sprinklers installed throughout all structures.  
Alternative fire protection measures may be approved by the Fire  
Department. 

4. All signage is subject to town approval.
5. �All fences and retaining walls shall be shown on the site plan and are subject to 

building Inspection Division approval.
6. �No existing trees will be preserved

Current Zoning: Commercial 1
Proposed Zoning: PD
Proposed Use: Office/Warehouse/Retail/Assembly
Total LOT area: 50,221 SQ. FT (1.153 Acres)
Building area: 18,500 Sq. ft
Required Greenspace: 20%/10,044 Sq. ft.
Greenspace Provided: 23%/11,380 Sq. ft 
Height: 27 Ft., 1 story
lot coverage: 37%
Sq. Ft. of impervious surface: 38,841 Sq. Ft
Total Parking: 5/per 1,000 Retail
    1 per/Thousand warehouse (Est. 44 needed) 
Current number of parking: 44 
Handicap parking is provided in  
accordance with ada standards
Planter Dimensions: 20’x4’x3’ 

THE FISH GALLERY -  
15003 INWOOD ROAD ADDISON, TX 75001
LEGAL 1:   JOSIAH PANCOAST ABST 1146 PG 536
LEGAL 4:   VOL87001/3230 EX122986 CO-DALLAS
Lot Number:  Lot 1 Block 1
Acreage: 1.153 Acres
Survey number: P-3670 
Prep. Dates: 9/8/2017, 10/9/2017, 10/14/2017, 10/21/2017, 10/27/2017, 11/3/2017, 
11/8/2017

Fe
nc

e

36 37 39 40 41 42 43 44

LOCATION KEY

New Road

Sidewalk

Green Space

Handicap Loading

Handicap Parking

Fence

LEGEND

Replacement Trees
(Will adhere to Addison  
Landscape Standards)

Repl. 3’ Hedges

SITE PLAN

6” W.L.

8”
 S

.S
.

15’ S.S.E.

Page 3

Si
de

w
al

k

Retaini
ng

 P
av

er

262524 27 28 29 30 31

Fence will adhere to Addison  
Landscape Standards

Firelane

9’

10’

D
um

ps
te

r



SHOW AQUARIUMS

BREAK 
ROOM

STAIRS
TO VATS

MEN’S

WOMEN’S

B
A

G
G

IN
G

 S
TA

TI
O

N

FRESHWATER DEPT.

STAIRS TO  
MEZZANINE OFFICES

SERVICE  
OFFICE

RETAIL RECEIVING 
AND 

SERVICE STORAGE 
28’ X 12’

FEEDER
FISH

TANKS

BETTAS

LIVE PLANTS SALTWATER DEPT.

FRESHWATER DEPT.

POND WALL

DRY GOODS

FRONT COUNTER

DRY GOODS

DRY AQUARIUMS

KIDS  
CORNER

GIANT FAUX  
TREE

ENTRY

fishroom

Show  
room

ACRYLIC 
SANDING &
POLISHING 

ROOM 
30’ X 25’

BUILD ROOM
WITH (6)  

FINISHING TABLES 
20’ X 7’
EACH

BUILD ROOM
WITH (6)  

FINISHING TABLES 
20’ X 7’
EACH

BUILD ROOM
WITH (6)  

FINISHING TABLES 
20’ X 7’
EACH

TOOL
ROOM 

16’ X 13’

OVEN 
25’ X 13’

WELDING 
MATERIALS 

32’ X 13’

WELDING 
MATERIALS

WELDING 
MATERIALS

WELDING 
AND 

BANDSAW 
48’ X 24’

WELDING 
AND 

BANDSAW 
48’ X 24’

WELDING 
AND 

BANDSAW 
48’ X 24’

RETAINING WALL

CHOPSAW 
AREA 

24’ X 4’

TABLE SAW 
22’ X 18’

GLASS
WASHER

AREA 
24’ X 8’

GLASS  
LITES 
11’ X 3’
EACH

GLASS  
CUTTING

TABLE
AREA 

14’ X 11’

CNC  
MACHINE

AREA 
22’ X 12’

GLASS
POLISHING
MACHINE 

45’ X 8’

FIRE WALL AND  

SPACE IS FIRE  

RETARDANT

FIREWALL 

FIREWALL 

8”
 E

X
IS

TI
N

G
 C

M
U

  
C

IN
D

E
R

 B
LO

C
K

 W
A

LL
 

C
B

6,300 SQ. FT.

12,200 SQ. FT.

C
B

C
B

C
B

78’

38’

35’

119’

140’

73’

100’ 46’

SCALE 1” = 10’ 0”

0’ 10’ 20’ 30’

Total Square Footage 18,500

Retail 6,300 SQ. FT. (34%)

Warehouse/Fabrication 12,200 SQ. Ft. (66%)

Owner:
Joe C. Thompson Jr.
3322 Shorecrest Drive #235
Dallas, TX, 75235
214-707-6463

Applicant:
Roger DeGregori
2909 Fountain View Drive
Houston TX, 77057

THE FISH GALLERY -  
15003 INWOOD ROAD ADDISON, TX 75001
LEGAL 1:   JOSIAH PANCOAST ABST 1146 PG 536
LEGAL 4:   VOL87001/3230 EX122986 CO-DALLAS
LOT NUMBER:  LOT 1 BLOCK 1
ACREAGE: 1.153 ACRES
SURVEY NUMBER: P-3670 
Prep. Dates: 9/8/2017, 10/9/2017, 10/14/2017, 10/21/2017, 10/27/2017, 11/3/2017, 
11/8/2017

LOCATION KEY

Page 8



Sidewalk

S
id

ew
al

k
S

id
ew

al
k

Planter

P
la

nt
er

11

10

12

13

14

15

22

35
15’ 15’

9’ 9’

3432 3833

23

21

20

19

18

17

25’

25’

24’

16
9

8

7

6

1 2 3 4 5

Owner:
Joe C. Thompson Jr.
3322 Shorecrest Drive #235
Dallas, TX, 75235
214-707-6463

Applicant:
Roger DeGregori
2909 Fountain View Drive
Houston TX, 77057

Sidewalk

Si
de

w
al

k

Si
de

w
al

k

Sidewalk

SITE PLAN NOTES

1. �Any revision to this plan will require Town approval and will require revisions to 
any corresponding plans to avoid conflicts between plans.

2. �Open storage, where permitted, shall be screened in accordance with the zoning 
Ordinace. 

3. �Buildings with an aggregate sum of 5,000 square feet or greater on a lot shall have 
automatic sprinklers installed throughout all structures.  
Alternative fire protection measures may be approved by the Fire  
Department. 

4. All signage is subject to town approval.
5. �All fences and retaining walls shall be shown on the site plan and are subject to 

building Inspection Division approval.
6. �No existing trees will be preserved

Current Zoning: Commercial 1
Proposed Zoning: PD
Proposed Use: Office/Warehouse/Retail/Assembly
Total LOT area: 50,221 SQ. FT (1.153 Acres)
Building area: 18,500 Sq. ft
Required Greenspace: 20%/10,044 Sq. ft.
Greenspace Provided: 23%/11,380 Sq. ft 
Height: 27 Ft., 1 story
lot coverage: 37%
Sq. Ft. of impervious surface: 38,841 Sq. Ft
Total Parking: 5/per 1,000 Retail
    1 per/Thousand warehouse (Est. 44 needed) 
Current number of parking: 44 
Handicap parking is provided in  
accordance with ada standards
Planter Dimensions: 20’x4’x3’ 

THE FISH GALLERY -  
15003 INWOOD ROAD ADDISON, TX 75001
LEGAL 1:   JOSIAH PANCOAST ABST 1146 PG 536
LEGAL 4:   VOL87001/3230 EX122986 CO-DALLAS
Lot Number:  Lot 1 Block 1
Acreage: 1.153 Acres
Survey number: P-3670 
Prep. Dates: 9/8/2017, 10/9/2017, 10/14/2017, 10/21/2017, 10/27/2017, 11/3/2017, 
11/8/2017

Tree Requirement
1 tree per 30 feet of linear frontage.
Trees needed on east side (8)
Trees proved on east side (8)
Trees needed on south side (8.8)
Trees provided on south side (9)

Shrubbery Requirement
One shrub planted Three to Three and one half feet on center –  
will comply with Addison Landscape Code.

Fe
nc

e

36 37 39 40 41 42 43 44

LOCATION KEY

New Road

Sidewalk

Green Space

Handicap Loading

Handicap Parking

Fence

LEGEND

Replacement Trees
(Will adhere to Addison  
Landscape Standards)

Repl. 3’ Hedges

LANDSCAPE PLAN

6” W.L.

8”
 S

.S
.

15’ S.S.E.

Page 4

Si
de

w
al

k

Retaini
ng

 P
av

er

262524 27 28 29 30 31

Fence will adhere to Addison  
Landscape Standards

Firelane

9’

10’

D
um

ps
te

r



Sidewalk

S
id

ew
al

k
S

id
ew

al
k

Planter

P
la

nt
er

11

10

12

13

14

15

22

35
15’ 15’

9’ 9’

3432 3833

23

21

20

19

18

17

25’

25’

24’

16
9

8

7

6

1 2 3 4 5

Owner:
Joe C. Thompson Jr.
3322 Shorecrest Drive #235
Dallas, TX, 75235
214-707-6463

Applicant:
Roger DeGregori
2909 Fountain View Drive
Houston TX, 77057

Sidewalk

Si
de

w
al

k

Si
de

w
al

k

Sidewalk

SITE PLAN NOTES

1. �Any revision to this plan will require Town approval and will require revisions 
to any corresponding plans to avoid conflicts between plans.

2. �Open storage, where permitted, shall be screened in accordance with the zoning 
Ordinace. 

3. �Buildings with an aggregate sum of 5,000 square feet or greater on a lot shall 
have automatic sprinklers installed throughout all structures.  
Alternative fire protection measures may be approved by the Fire  
Department. 

4. All signage is subject to town approval.
5. �All fences and retaining walls shall be shown on the site plan and are subject to 

building Inspection Division approval.
6. �No existing trees will be preserved

Current Zoning: Commercial 1
Proposed Zoning: PD
Proposed Use: Office/Warehouse/Retail/Assembly
Total LOT area: 50,221 SQ. FT (1.153 Acres)
Building area: 18,500 Sq. ft
Required Greenspace: 20%/10,044 Sq. ft.
Greenspace Provided: 23%/11,380 Sq. ft 
Height: 27 Ft., 1 story
lot coverage: 37%
Sq. Ft. of impervious surface: 38,841 Sq. Ft
Total Parking: 5/per 1,000 Retail
    1 per/Thousand warehouse (Est. 44 needed) 
Current number of parking: 44 
Handicap parking is provided in  
accordance with ada standards
Planter Dimensions: 20’x4’x3’
THE FISH GALLERY -  
15003 INWOOD ROAD ADDISON, TX 75001
LEGAL 1:   JOSIAH PANCOAST ABST 1146 PG 536
LEGAL 4:   VOL87001/3230 EX122986 CO-DALLAS
Lot Number:  Lot 1 Block 1
Acreage: 1.153 Acres
Survey number: P-3670 
Prep. Dates: 9/8/2017, 10/9/2017, 10/14/2017, 10/21/2017, 10/27/2017, 11/3/2017, 
11/8/2017

Fe
nc

e

36 37 39 40 41 42 43 44

LOCATION KEY

DRAINAGE PLAN

New Road

Sidewalk

Green Space

Handicap Loading

Handicap Parking

Fence will adhere to Addison  
Landscape Standards

Fence

LEGEND

Replacement Trees
(Will adhere to Addison  
Landscape Standards)

Repl. 3’ Hedges

6” W.L.

8” W
.S.

EX. 5/8” W.S.

EX. 5/8” W.S.

EX. 1” W.S.

EX. – ” S. SERV.

8”
 S

.S
.

8” S.S.

15’ S.S.E.

Page 2

Retaini
ng

 P
av

er

262524 27 28 29 30 31

Firelane



Sidewalk

S
id

ew
al

k
S

id
ew

al
k

Planter

P
la

nt
er

11

10

12

13

14

15

22

23

24
25

26

21

20

19

18

17

25’

25’

24’

16
9

8

7

6

1 2 3 4 5

Owner:
Joe C. Thompson Jr.
3322 Shorecrest Drive #235
Dallas, TX, 75235
214-707-6463

Applicant:
Roger DeGregori
2909 Fountain View Drive
Houston TX, 77057

Si
de

w
al

k

Si
de

w
al

k

SITE PLAN NOTES

1. �Any revision to this plan will require Town approval and will require revisions to any 
corresponding plans to avoid conflicts between plans.

2. �Open storage, where permitted, shall be screened in accordance with the zoning 
Ordinace. 

3. �Buildings with an aggregate sum of 5,000 square feet or greater on a lot shall have 
automatic sprinklers installed throughout all structures.  
Alternative fire protection measures may be approved by the Fire  
Department. 

4. All signage is subject to town approval.
5. �All fences and retaining walls shall be shown on the site plan and are subject to 

building Inspection Division approval.
6. �No existing trees will be preserved

Current Zoning: Commercial 1
Proposed Zoning: PD
Proposed Use: Office/Warehouse/Retail/Assembly
Total LOT area: 65,538 SQ. FT (1.153 Acres)
Building area: 18,500 Sq. ft
Required Greenspace: 20%/13,107 Sq. ft.
Greenspace Provided: 21%/14,070 Sq. ft 
Height: 27 Ft., 1 story
Lot coverage: 28%
Sq. Ft. of impervious surface: 51,513 Sq. Ft
Total Parking: 5/per 1,000 Retail
    1 per/Thousand warehouse (Est. 44 needed) 
Current number of parking: 60 
Handicap parking is provided in  
accordance with ada standards
Planter Dimensions: 20’x4’x3’ 

THE FISH GALLERY -  
15003 INWOOD ROAD ADDISON, TX 75001
LEGAL 1:   JOSIAH PANCOAST ABST 1146 PG 536
LEGAL 4:   VOL87001/3230 EX122986 CO-DALLAS
Lot Number:  Lot 1 Block 1
Acreage: 1.153 Acres
Survey number: P-3670 
Prep. Dates: 9/8/2017, 10/9/2017, 10/14/2017, 10/21/2017, 10/27/2017, 11/3/2017, 
11/8/2017

Tree Requirement
1 tree per 30 feet of linear frontage.
Trees needed 10.2
Trees provided 19
Trees needed on south side (8.8)
Trees provided on south side (9)

Shrubbery Requirement
One shrub planted Three to Three and one half feet on center –  
will comply with Addison Landscape Code.

Fe
nc

e
56 57 58 59 60

LOCATION KEY

LEGEND

Replacement Trees
(Will adhere to Addison  
Landscape Standards)

Repl. 3’ Hedges

Firelane

PRELIMINARY  LANDSCAPE PLAN

6” W.L.

8”
 S

.S
.

15’ S.S.E.

Page 7

Si
de

w
al

k

Retaini
ng

 P
av

er

27 28 29 30 31 32 33 34  

Sidewalk

Green Space

Handicap Loading

Handicap Parking

Fence

Fence will adhere to Addison  
Landscape Standards

43

52

42

5148

44

53

40

49

45

54

41

50

46

55

47

9’

10’

D
um

ps
te

r



22
’ 0

”

140’ 3”

Oven Retaining Wall

Owner:
Joe C. Thompson Jr.
3322 Shorecrest Drive #235
Dallas, TX, 75235
214-707-6463

Applicant:
Roger DeGregori
2909 Fountain View Drive
Houston TX, 77057

12
’-

0”

105’-1  1/4”

22
’ 0

”

25
’ 6

”

24’ 0”

24’ 0”

145’ 8”
44’ 0”

25
’ 6

”

25
’ 6

”

FACADE PLAN NOTES
· �This Facade Plan is for conceptual purposes only.  
All building plans require review and approval by  
Development Services.

· ������All mechanical units shall be screened from public  
view as required by the Zoning Ordinance.

· �When permitted, exposed utility boxes and conduits  
shall be painted to match the building.

· �All signage areas and locations are subject to approval by 
Development Services.

· �Roof access shall be provided internally, unless otherwise 
permitted by the Chief Building Official.

Page 1

1

145’ 8”

‘Brick’ (95% coverage)
cream color. 

‘vintage wood Ceramic’ (5% coverage)
dark brown.

exterior Ceramic panels offer a simple clip  
installation system and an integrated rainscreen.

6

3’-0”

4’-0”

140’ 3”

46’ 0”

18’ 1 3/4”27’ 1 1/4”

SLOPE 12” FLASHING

CAULK JT.

EXIST. BLDG.

ELEV 120’ 1 1/2” 

NOTE STRUCTURAL  PLAN 
FOR ROOF SLOPE &  ELEV/STEEL BM

ELEVATION 119’ 7 1/2” 
TOP BM

EXTEND  
DOWNSPOUTS 
TO DRAINAGE  
GUTTER

ELEV F.F. 100.0’

ELEV F.F. 100.0’

22

RETAIL STORE - WEST SIDE

OVERHEAD 

DOOR

RETAIL STORE - EAST SIDE

15003 INWOOD ROAD ELEVATION

NORTH SIDE ELEVATION REAR ELEVATION
SCALE 1/8” = 1’ 0”

SCALE 1/8” = 1’ 0”

SCALE 1/8” = 1’ 0”

2

OVERHEAD 

DOOR

SOUTH SIDE ELEVATION

44’ 0”

THE FISH GALLERY -  
15003 INWOOD ROAD ADDISON, TX 75001
LEGAL 1:   JOSIAH PANCOAST ABST 1146 PG 536
LEGAL 4:   VOL87001/3230 EX122986 CO-DALLAS
LOT NUMBER:  LOT 1 BLOCK 1
ACREAGE: 1.153 ACRES
SURVEY NUMBER: P-3670 
Prep. Dates: 9/8/2017, 10/9/2017, 10/14/2017, 10/21/2017, 10/27/2017, 11/3/2017, 11/8/2017

0’ 5’ 10’ 15’ 20’

0’ 5’ 10’ 15’ 20’

SCALE 1/8” = 1’ 0”

0’ 5’ 10’ 15’ 20’

SCALE 1/8” = 1’ 0”

0’ 5’ 10’ 15’ 20’

0’ 5’ 10’ 15’ 20’

LOCATION KEY

0”

0”

0”

0”

Facade Material Square Footage 
Total Sq. Ft: 3,558
Brick: 87% (3,095 Sq. Ft)
Wood Ceramic: 13% (463 Sq. Ft)

Facade Material Square Footage 
Total Sq. Ft: 3,576
Brick: %100 (3,576 Sq. Ft)
Wood Ceramic: 0%

Brick: 79%

Facade Material Square Footage 
Total Sq. Ft: 3,558
Brick:100% (3,558 Sq. Ft)
Wood Ceramic: 0% (0 Sq. Ft)

Facade Material Square Footage 
Total Sq. Ft: 3,576
Brick: 83% (2,968 Sq. Ft)
Wood Ceramic: 17% (608 Sq. Ft)



   
AI-2507     12.             
Work Session and Regular Meeting
Meeting Date: 12/12/2017  
Department: Infrastructure- Development Services

AGENDA CAPTION:
Present, Discuss, and Consider Action on an Ordinance Granting a Meritorious
Exception for 7-Eleven, Located at 3710 Belt Line Road, from the Code of
Ordinances, Chapter 62 Section 62-140. - Gasoline Signs in Order to Permit a
Total Number of Signs Exceeding the Allowed Maximum.

BACKGROUND:
In 2015, the Town of Addison amended the Sign Code to allow for an increase in the
size of gasoline price-per-gallon signs, from four square feet to twelve square feet, and to
limit the number of signs by allowing one sign for every four pumps, up to a maximum of
four signs total. Prior to this change, there was no limit on the number of signs that could
be installed. Based on these changes, this section of the Sign Code currently reads as
follows:
  

Section 62-140. – Gasoline signs.
Gasoline price per gallon or credit card signs may be mounted on pump
islands only, with a maximum area of any single sign face not to exceed 12
square feet. One such sign shall be allowed for every four pumps up to a
maximum of four signs. All other signage on a pump or pump island shall be
limited to the business or fuel identification, operational instructions and state
required information.

The 7-Eleven/ExxonMobil located on the southeast corner of Belt Line Road and Marsh
Lane, at 3710Belt Line Road, recently upgraded their gas station signage. This process
started in March of 2017 and includes discussions with staff and an early submittal of
plans. Some of the elements proposed in the early submittal resulted in the meritorious
exception request that the Council considered on June 27, 2017 for the “wave,” “blade,”
and “koala ear” signs. That request was denied and resulted in additional discussions
and plan submittals during the Summer and early Fall.
 
A component of the proposed changes included replacing the four existing manual
changeable copy gasoline price-per-gallon signs with four new LED Price signs.
Although gasoline price signs do not require permits, staff notified the sign contractor on
three occasions during conversations about the other proposed signage that any new
price signs would need to comply with Section 62-140.

In September, staff was on-site inspecting other signs that did require permits and
observed the four new LED price signs. Since the property has twelve fuel pumps



and Section 62-140 permits one sign for every four pumps, the the property is only
permitted to have three signs. Staff issued a notice of violation indicating that one of the
signs needs to be removed. The property owner is requesting a meritorious exception to
be allowed to keep the fourth sign.
 
Please see the attached application for photos and plans of the existing and proposed
signage.

RECOMMENDATION:
Administration recommends denial.

Attachments
Ordinance - 7-Eleven Meritorious Exception
Application - 7-Eleven/ExxonMobil



Ordinance No.     

TOWN OF ADDISON, TEXAS 

ORDINANCE NO. O17-   

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF ADDISON, 

TEXAS GRANTING A MERITORIOUS EXCEPTION TO SECTION 62-140 OF 

CHAPTER 62 OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES TO ALLOW A TOTAL OF 

FOUR GASOLINE PRICE SIGNS ON THE PROPERTY LOCATED AT 3710 

BELT LINE ROAD, PROVIDING A PENALTY NOT TO EXCEED FIVE 

HUNDRED AND NO/100 DOLLARS ($500.00) FOR EACH OFFENSE AND A 

SEPARATE OFFENSE SHALL BE DEEMED COMMITTED EACH DAY 

DURING OR ON WHICH A VIOLATION OCCURS OR CONTINUES; AND 

PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

WHEREAS, Chapter 62 of the Code of Ordinances regulates signage in the Town of 

Addison; and 

 

WHEREAS, Section 62-33 permits the City Council to approve exceptions to the 

provisions of Chapter 62 in cases that have obvious merit in not only being appropriate to the 

particular site or location, but also in making a positive contribution to the visual environment; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council has determined that the grant of the meritorious exception 

contained herein is in the best interest of the public and promotes the visual environment of the 

Town. 

 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF 

THE TOWN OF ADDISON, TEXAS: 

 

Section 1. That the recitals and findings set forth above are hereby found to be true 

and correct and incorporated as if fully set forth herein. 

 

Section 2. That a meritorious exception to Section 62-140 of Chapter 62 of the Code of 

Ordinances is hereby granted to allow a total of four digital gasoline price signs, as detailed in 

Exhibit A for 7-Eleven, located at 3710 Belt Line Road. No other additional signage is permitted 

unless it complies with Chapter 62 of the Code of Ordinances. 

 

Section 3. Any person, firm, corporation, or other business entity violating any of the 

provisions or terms of this Ordinance shall, in accordance with Section 62-35 of the Town of 

Addison Code of Ordinance (Violations), be fined, upon conviction, in an amount of not more than 

Five Hundred and No/100 Dollars ($500.00), and a separate offense shall be deemed committed 

each day during or on which a violation occurs or continues. 

 

Section 4. That this Ordinance shall take effect from and after its date of adoption and 

publication as required by law. 



Ordinance No.     

PASSED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE TOWN 

OF ADDISON, TEXAS, on this the 12th day of December, 2017. 
 

 

 

Joe Chow, Mayor 
 
 

ATTEST: 

 

 

________________________________ 

Christie Wilson, Interim City Secretary 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 

 

_____________________________ 

Brenda N. McDonald, City Attorney 



Ordinance No.    

Exhibit A 
 

 

 

 



Ordinance No.    

Exhibit A 
 

 

 

 



Ordinance No.    

Exhibit A 
 

 

 

 





Site Plan

NTS

A

20’-0”
SET BACK

20’-0”
SET BACK

35’-0”
VISIBILITY
TRIANGLE

35’-0”
VISIBILITY
TRIANGLE

Existing Pylon SignA

B

LED Price Wall Sign CabinetsB

BB

B

1

THE SIGNS ON THESE PAGES HAVE BEEN DESIGNED
TO MEET OR EXCEED ALL APPLICABLE CODES OR

REQUIREMENTS OF THE NEC-2014 AND OR
THE 2014 FBC AND OR THE 2007 SFBC 

PM: bb

customer approval date:

Salesperson: rg Designer: mh Page: 

THIS DESIGN IS FOR THE SOLE PURPOSE OF ILLUSTRATION & CONCEPT DESIGN. THIS FILE IS NOT TO BE USED FOR PRODUCTION AND/OR FABRICATION. THIS DESIGN IS THE SOLE PROPERTY OF HARBINGER AND MAY NOT BE USED OR DUPLICATED IN ANY FORM WITHOUT THE EXPRESS WRITTEN PERMISSION OF HARBINGER.

SVE5716-R4

F:\Customers\7 Eleven\Art
\SVE5716-R4 #35382 LED.cdr

date:  description: designer: 

mh
mh
mh
mh
mh

rev.

01.16.17
01.18.17
03.15.17
04.05.17
06.14.17

00
R1
R2
R3
R4

Original Concept
Revised removing sign A option 1 layouts.
Revised sign A paint color, changed to static price.
Revised sign A and fuel canopy.
Revised sign A to remain as is, added sign B wall cabinets.

7-Eleven #35382
3710 Belt Line Road
Addison, Texas 75001

5300 Shad Road, Jacksonville, FL. 32257 • 904.268.4681

2301 Ohio Dr, Plano, TX. 32257 • 972.905.9450

tommy
Oval



3

THE SIGNS ON THESE PAGES HAVE BEEN DESIGNED
TO MEET OR EXCEED ALL APPLICABLE CODES OR

REQUIREMENTS OF THE NEC-2014 AND OR
THE 2014 FBC AND OR THE 2007 SFBC 

PM: bb

customer approval date:

Salesperson: rg Designer: mh Page: 

THIS DESIGN IS FOR THE SOLE PURPOSE OF ILLUSTRATION & CONCEPT DESIGN. THIS FILE IS NOT TO BE USED FOR PRODUCTION AND/OR FABRICATION. THIS DESIGN IS THE SOLE PROPERTY OF HARBINGER AND MAY NOT BE USED OR DUPLICATED IN ANY FORM WITHOUT THE EXPRESS WRITTEN PERMISSION OF HARBINGER.

SVE5716-R4

F:\Customers\7 Eleven\Art
\SVE5716-R4 #35382 LED.cdr

date:  description: designer: 

mh
mh
mh
mh
mh

rev.

01.16.17
01.18.17
03.15.17
04.05.17
06.14.17

00
R1
R2
R3
R4

Original Concept
Revised removing sign A option 1 layouts.
Revised sign A paint color, changed to static price.
Revised sign A and fuel canopy.
Revised sign A to remain as is, added sign B wall cabinets.

7-Eleven #35382
3710 Belt Line Road
Addison, Texas 75001

5300 Shad Road, Jacksonville, FL. 32257 • 904.268.4681

2301 Ohio Dr, Plano, TX. 32257 • 972.905.9450

Face & Side Detail - Custom Wall Sign Cabinet - Sign B

½” = 1’-0" Display Square Footage (Cabinet): 12.0

MANUFACTURE & SHIP FOUR (4) CUSTOM S/F INTERNALLY ILLUMINATED LED GAS PRICE WALL SIGN 
CABINETS WITH RED & GREEN LEDS.  3/16” THICK PAN FORMED WHITE POLYCARBONATE FACE WITH
TRANSLUCENT VINYL GRAPHICS APPLIED FIRST SURFACE.  4” DEEP EXTRUDED ALUM. CABINET WITH 
1 1/4” RETAINERS TO BE PAINTED EXXON P8 EGGSHELL WHITE.
CABINET TO BE INTERNALLY ILLUMINATED W/ WHITE LEDS.

PROPOSED WITH 8” PRICE-VISION RED & GREEN LEDS FOR PRESENTATION.
ACTUAL LEDS WILL BE XOM FACE VENTILATED PV LED MODULES PROVIDED BY XOM SIGN SUPPLIER.

    VINYL SPECS:
3M 3630-8248 BLUE

  PAINT SPECS:
EXXON P8 EGGSHELL WHITE

3’-0” CABINET

2’-11 ½” CUT SIZE

2’-9 ½” V.O.

2’-7 ½” PAN

4
’-
0
” 

C
A

B
IN

E
T

3
’-
9
 ½

” 
V

.O
.

3
’-
7
 ½

” 
P

A
N

3
’-
11

 1
/2

” 
C

U
T

 S
IZ

E

LED UNIT SIZE:
LED UNIT V.O:

LED CHARACTER SIZE:

11.487” X 25.537”
11.487” X 25.537”
8”

PANNED 3/16”
POLY. FACE 

ON/OFF TOGGLE SWITCH

LAG BOLTS W/ SHIELDS

WHITE LED

BUILDING FASCIA

4” 2” PAN

.040 ALUM. BACK

POWER SUPPLY

1 1/4” RETAINER

LED UNIT
FACE VENTILATED
PV LED MODULES

LED UNIT
FACE VENTILATED
PV LED MODULES

Photo Overlay - Fuel Canopy Elevation - Sign B

NTS

PROPOSED ELEVATION:

EXISTING CONDITION:

NOTE:  EXISTING (THREE 3) STATIC GAS PRICE WALL CABINETS TO BE REMOVED & DISPOSED OF.
NOTE:  DEDICATED 20 AMP CIRCUIT REQUIRED FOR LED GAS PRICE CABINET, MUST BE PROVIDED BY CUSTOMER



4

THE SIGNS ON THESE PAGES HAVE BEEN DESIGNED
TO MEET OR EXCEED ALL APPLICABLE CODES OR

REQUIREMENTS OF THE NEC-2014 AND OR
THE 2014 FBC AND OR THE 2007 SFBC 

PM: bb

customer approval date:

Salesperson: rg Designer: mh Page: 

THIS DESIGN IS FOR THE SOLE PURPOSE OF ILLUSTRATION & CONCEPT DESIGN. THIS FILE IS NOT TO BE USED FOR PRODUCTION AND/OR FABRICATION. THIS DESIGN IS THE SOLE PROPERTY OF HARBINGER AND MAY NOT BE USED OR DUPLICATED IN ANY FORM WITHOUT THE EXPRESS WRITTEN PERMISSION OF HARBINGER.

SVE5716-R4

F:\Customers\7 Eleven\Art
\SVE5716-R4 #35382 LED.cdr

date:  description: designer: 

mh
mh
mh
mh
mh

rev.

01.16.17
01.18.17
03.15.17
04.05.17
06.14.17

00
R1
R2
R3
R4

Original Concept
Revised removing sign A option 1 layouts.
Revised sign A paint color, changed to static price.
Revised sign A and fuel canopy.
Revised sign A to remain as is, added sign B wall cabinets.

7-Eleven #35382
3710 Belt Line Road
Addison, Texas 75001

5300 Shad Road, Jacksonville, FL. 32257 • 904.268.4681

2301 Ohio Dr, Plano, TX. 32257 • 972.905.9450

Photo Overlay - Fuel Canopy Elevation - Sign B

NTS

PROPOSED ELEVATION:EXISTING CONDITION:

NOTE:  EXISTING STATIC GAS PRICE WALL CABINET TO BE REMOVED & DISPOSED OF.
NOTE:  DEDICATED 20 AMP CIRCUIT REQUIRED FOR LED GAS PRICE CABINET, MUST BE PROVIDED BY CUSTOMER



   
AI-2510     13.             
Work Session and Regular Meeting
Meeting Date: 12/12/2017  
Department: Infrastructure- Development Services
Milestones: Develop a Cotton Belt Strategy

AGENDA CAPTION:
Present, Discuss, and Consider Action on a Resolution to Appoint Members to the
Addison Circle/Cotton Belt Special Area Study Advisory Committee.

BACKGROUND:
At its November 28, 2017 meeting, the City Council approved a contract with
Kimley-Horn and Associates to conduct a special area study for the Addison Circle
neighborhood, including the properties adjacent to the Cotton Belt rail line. Part of the
study process includes working with an advisory committee. This committee will assist
staff and the consultants to review the study area, create development alternatives, and
select a preferred redevelopment plan that will then be presented to the City Council for
consideration.

At the November 28th meeting, the Council indicated that the DART Area Focus Group
members should also serve on this advisory committee. Staff is checking with the Area
Focus Group members to see if they are willing to serve in this new capacity and will
provide an update at the Council Meeting. Additionally, the Council discussed possibly
appointing additional members from the Addison Circle neighborhood. The list of the
current Area Focus Group members and their responses are attached.

The attached resolution has been crafted so that committee members' names can be
filled in based on Council's discussions at the meeting.

RECOMMENDATION:
Administration recommends approval.

Attachments
Resolution - Addison Circle/Cotton Belt Special Area Study Committee
Appointments
Report - Addison DART Area Focus Group Members and Responses



OFFICE OF THE CITY SECRETARY   RESOLUTION NO. _____ 

Page 1 of 1 

TOWN OF ADDISON, TEXAS 

 

RESOLUTION NO. ______ 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF ADDISON, 

TEXAS CREATING THE ADDISON CIRCLE/COTTON BELT SPECIAL AREA 

STUDY COMMITTEE AND APPOINTING MEMBERS.  

 

WHEREAS, in November 2017, the City Council Town of Addison approved a contract 

to conduct a Special Area Study of the Addison Circle neighborhood, including the properties 

adjacent to the Cotton Belt rail line; and 

 

WHEREAS, in an effort to stimulate public participation, the City Council desires to 

create a committee to provide input to the consultants retained to conduct the special area study. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

TOWN OF ADDISON, TEXAS: 

 

 Section 1.  The City Council hereby creates the Addison Circle/Cotton Belt Special Area 

Study Committee to provide input regarding the Addison Circle/Cotton Belt study area. The 

committee will be comprised of the following individuals: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Section 2.  The Committee shall be advisory in nature and shall be dissolved upon adoption 

of the Addison Circle/Cotton Belt Special Area Study. 

 

 Section 3.  This resolution shall be effective from and after the date of passage. 

 

 DULY PASSED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF ADDISON, TEXAS, 

this the 12th day of December, 2017. 

 

 

              

       Joe Chow, Mayor 

 

ATTEST:     

  

 

      

Christie Wilson, Interim City Secretary 

     

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 

 

____________________________________ 

Brenda N. McDonald, City Attorney 



Name Appointed By Resident/Business Yes No No 
Response Comment

Liesl Mayerson Angell Resident X
Taylor Bowen Angell AMLI Residential X
Mary Jo Cater Arfsten Resident X

Gage Hunt Arfsten Mary Kay Inc. X
Lesli Gray Duffy Resident X

Shannon Sear Duffy Resident/Post Addison Circle X
Margie Gunther Hughes Resident X

Jan Rugg Hughes Addison Business Association X
Luis Santeliz Meier Resident X
Juli Branson Meier Resident X
Nancy Craig Walden Resident X Out 2/17-3/10
Peggy Ploss Walden Resident X
Gail Barth Wilcox Resident X
Lola Hurt Wilcox Resident X

Addison Circle/Cotton Belt Special 
Area Study Committee?DART Cotton Belt Area Focus Group Addison Appointees



   
AI-2502     14.             
Work Session and Regular Meeting
Meeting Date: 12/12/2017  
Department: Parks & Recreation

AGENDA CAPTION:
Present, Discuss, and Consider Action on a Resolution to Approve a Professional
Services Agreement with Pacheco Koch Consulting Engineers, Inc. for the
Belt Line Road Enhancements Master Plan (Belt Line Phase 1.5) and
Authorize the City Manager to Execute the Agreement  in an Amount not to
Exceed $85,689.60.

BACKGROUND:
The 2012 Bond Program included a project to underground the overhead utilities on Belt
Line Road from Marsh Lane to the Dallas North Tollway. Phase 1 of this project, from
Marsh Lane to Midway Road, is nearing completion.  In addition to consideration of the
undergrounding, the Town recently adopted a new Master Transportation Plan.  This
plan designated Belt Line Road as an enhanced pedestrian path that would include
wider sidewalks pulled away from the back of curb.

On March 20, 2017, staff provided an update on Phase 1 of the utility undergrounding
project and presented options to consider. Staff requested direction from Council to
determine how to proceed with potential future phases of the project from Midway
Road to the Dallas North Tollway.  Council provided direction to staff in the form of a
motion which was approved by a vote of 6-0, with one Council Member absent. Council
listed the following items in the motion: 

Delay Phase 2 of the Undergrounding Project1.
Focus on the Beautification of Phase 12.
Proceed with the overlay of Belt Line Road from Marsh Lane to the Dallas
North Tollway

3.

Direct staff to return to discuss the Master Transportation Plan in regards to
the design of Midway Road

4.

On May 23, 2017 during a work session, staff provided an update on the opportunities
and constraints related to Belt Line Road Beautification from Marsh to Midway.  During
the discussion, Council directed staff to focus on the project elements in the following
order: 

Intersections1.
Bus Stops2.
Right-Of-Way3.
Found Space4.



The professional services agreement with Pacheco Koch will allow staff to move forward
with schematic design and public input for the Belt Line Road Beautifications from Marsh
to Midway.  Pacheco Koch was identified through Bid #17-180 (RFQ - Professional
Services for Various Projects) and selected after a project specific selection
process which included two other landscape architecture firms. The total cost for this
agreement is not to exceed $85,689.60 and is budgeted for in the Infrastructure
Investment Fund. The total budget for design is $250,000. The project will begin in
December 2017 and is expected to be completed by the end of May 2018.

RECOMMENDATION:
Administration recommends approval.

Attachments
Resolution - Pacheco Koch Consulting Engineers, Inc



TOWN OF ADDISON, TEXAS

RESOLUTION NO. ________

A  RESOLUTION  OF  THE  CITY  COUNCIL  OF  THE  TOWN  OF
ADDISON,  TEXAS  APPROVING  THE  AGREEMENT  FOR
PROFESSIONAL  ENGINEERING  SERVICES  BETWEEN  THE  TOWN
OF ADDISON AND PACHECO KOCH CONSULTING ENGINEERS, INC.
FOR  BELT  LINE  ROAD  ENHANCEMENTS  MASTER  PLAN  IN  AN
AMOUNT  NOT  TO  EXCEED  $85,689.60,  AUTHORIZING  THE  CITY
MANAGER TO EXECUTE THE AGREEMENT, AND PROVIDING AN
EFFECTIVE DATE.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE
TOWN OF ADDISON, TEXAS:

Section 1. The Agreement for Professional Engineering Services between the Town
of Addison and Pacheco Koch Consulting Engineers, Inc.,  for Belt Line Road Enhancements
Master  Plan  in  an  amount  not  to  exceed  $85,689.60,  a  copy  of  which  is  attached  to  this
Resolution as Exhibit A, is hereby approved. The City Manager is hereby authorized to execute
the agreement.

Section 2. This Resolution shall take effect from and after its date of adoption.

PASSED AND APPROVED by the City Council of the Town of Addison, Texas this
the 12th day of December, 2017.

___________________________
Joe Chow, Mayor

ATTEST:

By: _______________________________
Christie Wilson, Interim City Secretary

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

By: _______________________________
Brenda N. McDonald, City Attorney



EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT A



   
AI-2503     15.             
Work Session and Regular Meeting
Meeting Date: 12/12/2017  
Department: Parks & Recreation

AGENDA CAPTION:
Present, Discuss, and Consider Action on a Resolution to Approve a Professional
Services Agreement with Moore Iacofano Goltsman, Inc. for the Parks,
Recreation and Open Space Master Plan and Authorize the City Manager to
Execute the Agreement  in an Amount not to Exceed $125,000.

BACKGROUND:
The Parks Master Plan was completed in May 2009 by Grant Development Services
and adopted by Council on May 26, 2009.  As part of the Fiscal Year (FY) 2018 budget
process, Parks staff requested funds to update the Master Plan as it is nearing
completion in its current form. Additionally, the updated master plan will be eligible for
the ‘Project Priority Scoring System’ for Local Park Grants Program through Texas
Parks & Wildlife.

The Parks Master Plan will involve four phases: 

Discover - Establish a plan foundation based on the Town's unique character1.
Imagine - Involve residents, employees and visitors in re-imagining parks and
public space in innovative ways

2.

Re-Create -  Identify the key moves that will reinvent and redefine the park
and recreation system of the future

3.

Activate - Define investment/partnership options and an action plan to
enhance the park, recreation and open space system

4.

The professional services agreement with Moore Iacnofano and Goltsman, Inc (MIG) will
allow staff to move forward with the Parks, Recreation and Open Space Master
Plan.  MIG was identified through Bid #17-180 (RFQ - Professional Services for Various
Projects) which short listed seven landscape architecture firms for professional
agreements in the Town. After narrowing down the shortlist to two firms, MIG and
Dunaway Associates, staff interviewed both firms and determined MIG was the most
qualified consultant to complete the master. The total cost is not to exceed $125,000 and
is budgeted for in the Self-Funded Project Fund. The project will begin in December
2017 and is expected to be completed by September 30, 2018.

RECOMMENDATION:
Administration recommends approval.



Attachments
Resolution - Moore Iacofano Goltsman, Inc.



TOWN OF ADDISON, TEXAS 

RESOLUTION NO. ________ 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF ADDISON, 
TEXAS APPROVING THE AGREEMENT FOR PROFESSIONAL 
LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTURE AND PLANNING SERVICES BETWEEN 
THE TOWN OF ADDISON AND MOORE IACOFANO GOLTSMAN, INC. 
FOR PARKS, RECREATION AND OPEN SPACE MASTER PLAN IN AN 
AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $125,000.00, AUTHORIZING THE CITY 
MANAGER TO EXECUTE THE AGREEMENT, AND PROVIDING AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
TOWN OF ADDISON, TEXAS: 
 
 Section 1. The Agreement for Professional Landscape Architecture and Planning 
Services between the Town of Addison and Moore Iacofano Goltsman, Inc., for Parks, Recreation 
and Open Space Master Plan in an amount not to exceed $125,000.00, a copy of which is attached 
to this Resolution as Exhibit A, is hereby approved. The City Manager is hereby authorized to 
execute the agreement. 
 
 Section 2. This Resolution shall take effect from and after its date of adoption. 
 
 PASSED AND APPROVED by the City Council of the Town of Addison, Texas this the 
12th day of December, 2017. 
 
 
       ___________________________  
       Joe Chow, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
By: _______________________________      
 Christie Wilson, Interim City Secretary 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
By: _______________________________      
 Brenda N. McDonald, City Attorney 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



EXHIBIT A 
 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 

 


	Agenda
	3._Addison Circle Park Fountain
	Att1_Presentation - Addison Circle Park Display Fountain
	4._Debt 101 Presentation
	Att1_Presentation - Debt 101
	Att2_Frequently Asked Questions - Debt 101
	5._Artificial Turf Discussion
	Att1_Presentation - Artificial Turf
	7._City Council Meeting Minute Approval
	Att1_Minutes - November 14, 2017
	Att2_Minutes - November 28, 2017
	8._Surveyor GST Improvements Construction Award
	Att1_Resolution with Contract - Felix Construction Company
	Att2_Bid Tabulation - Bid 18-03
	Att3_Certificate of Interested Parties - Felix Construction Company
	9._Resolution Endorsing Design for Aerial Rail Crossing of Midway Road
	Att1_Resolution - Endorsement for Design for Aerial Crossing of the Cotton Belt Line at Midway Road
	10._PUBLIC HEARING Case 1767-Z_Elan Addison Grove
	Att1_Ordinance - 1767-Z Elan Addison Grove Development Plan Approval
	Att2_Staff Report - 1767-Z
	1767-Z Map
	1767-Z Staff Report
	1767-Z Commission Findings

	Att3_Plans - 1767-Z
	Combined 11 16 17
	20171116 - Revised Architecture Sheets
	20171108 - Architecture Sheets
	20171116 - Revised Architecture Sheets
	20171108 - Architecture Sheets
	20171116 - Revised Architecture Sheets

	Combined LSP 11 16 17
	20171116 - Revised Landscape Plans
	20171108 - Landscape Sheets

	20171108 - Utility Plan

	11._PUBLIC HEARING Case 1766-Z_Fish Gallery
	Att1_Ordinance - 1766-Z Fish Gallery
	Att2_Staff Report - 1766-Z
	1766-Z Map
	1766-Z Staff Report
	Addison Land Use Analysis form
	1766-Z Commission Findings

	Att3_Plans - 1766-Z 
	Inwwod_Final_Plans_p1
	Inwwod_Final_Plans_p2
	Inwwod_Final_Plans_p3
	Inwwod_Final_Plans_p4
	Inwwod_Final_Plans_p5
	Inwwod_Final_Plans_p6
	Inwwod_Final_Plans_p7
	Inwwod_Final_Plans_p8

	12._Meritorious Exception_ 7-Eleven_ExxonMobil - 3710 Belt Line Road
	Att1_Ordinance - 7-Eleven Meritorious Exception
	Att2_Application - 7-Eleven_ExxonMobil
	1
	Application
	Sign Plans


	13._Addison Circle Special Area Study Advisory Committee Resolution
	Att1_Resolution - Addison Circle_Cotton Belt Special Area Study Committee Appointments
	Att2_Report - Addison DART Area Focus Group Members and Responses
	14._Contract for Belt Line 1.5
	Att1_Resolution - Pacheco Koch Consulting Engineers, Inc
	15._Contract for the Parks Master Plan Update
	Att1_Resolution - Moore Iacofano Goltsman, Inc.

